COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PLAN

FIFTEENTH ANNUAL REPORT

1974-75



COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PLAN

FIFTEENTH ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 MARCH 1975

Prepared by THE ASSOCIATION OF COMMONWEALTH UNIVERSITIES for the COMMONWEALTH SECRETARIAT

Commonwealth Secretariat

COMMONWEALTH SECRETARIAT

Marlborough House Pall Mall London SW1Y 5HX

First published 1975 Copyright © Commonwealth Secretariat 1975 ISBN 0850921031

Copies may be purchased from the Publications Section of the Commonwealth Secretariat

Published and Printed by the Commonwealth Secretariat

CONTENTS

	Page
Introduction	1
Administration of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan	2
Summary of the working of the Plan in the Commonwealth countries	3
Australia	3
Commonwealth of The Bahamas	3
Bangladesh	4
Barbados	4
Belize	4
Botswana	5
Britain	5
Colonial and Dependent Territories	7
Canada	11
Cyprus	12
Fiji	13
Gambia	13
Ghana	13
Grenada	13
Guyana	13
India	14
Jamaica	15
Kenya	16
Lesotho	16
Malawi	16
Malaysia	16
Malta	16
Mauritius	17
Nauru	17
New Zealand	17
Nigeria	18
Rhodesia	19

		Page			
	Sierra Leone	19			
	Singapore	19			
	Sri Lanka	20			
	Swaziland	20			
	Tanzania				
	Tonga				
	Trinidad and Tobago				
	Uganda				
	Western Samoa	22			
	Zambia	22			
App	pendices				
	I List of Commonwealth Scholarship Agencies	23			
	II Commonwealth Scholarship Emoluments	28			
	III Register of Commonwealth Scholars who have taken up Awards during the Period under Report	37			
	IV Commonwealth Visiting Fellowships and other Senior Awards under the Plan	52			
	V Statistical Tables	72			

INTRODUCTION

This report covers the operation in all participating countries of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan during the period 1 April 1974 to 31 March 1975.

The Report has been prepared by the Association of Commonwealth Universities for publication by the Commonwealth Secretariat. It has been compiled, like earlier Reports, from information provided by the Commonwealth Scholarship agencies, and consists of statements commenting on the working of the Plan in their respective countries and of Appendices giving details and statistics relating to certain aspects of the Plan. Following this introduction there is a general section entitled 'Administration of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan' which discusses the overall working of the Plan.

The Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan was drawn up at the first Commonwealth Education Conference held at Oxford in 1959. The general basis of the Plan is that those Commonwealth Governments which are able to do so should institute Commonwealth Scholarships and Fellowships to be held by men and women from other Commonwealth countries at universities and other institutions of higher learning in the awarding country. The scheme's progress has been reviewed at successive Commonwealth Education Conferences at New Delhi in 1962, Ottawa in 1964, Lagos in 1968, Canberra in 1971, and Jamaica in 1974.

Definitions set out in the first Annual Report and confirmed by the New Delhi, Ottawa and Lagos Conferences for use in reports and statistics are given below. Two definitions were added in the third Annual Report to the original list and a few verbal changes have also been made:

institution of awards: when a country has by a government decision made financial provisions etc. for Scholarships or Fellowships under the Plan for study by citizens of other Commonwealth countries in its own country it is said to have instituted awards;

awarding country: a country which has instituted awards is known as an awarding country;

submission of nominations: when a country has forwarded a short list of recommended candidates from its own country for final consideration in an awarding country it is said to have <u>nominated</u> them;

nominating country: any country invited to submit nominations;

<u>award offered</u>: is an award which has actually been offered by the awarding country to a specific candidate nominated by another country. This phrase does not apply to the invitation to another country by an awarding country to submit nominations; <u>award accepted</u>: is an award which has been accepted by the candidate to whom it was offered, whether yet taken up or not;

award taken up: is an award which has been utilized to the extent that the Scholar has actually commenced study under the Plan in the awarding country;

awards made available: when an awarding country has instituted a fixed number of awards it makes a proportion of them available each year for new selections;

set of awards: when an awarding country makes available a group of awards tenable from a date common to the group as a whole the awards are known as a set of awards and may be referred to by the name of the awarding country and the calendar year in which they are tenable. Thus awards tenable in Nigeria from September 1975 are referred to as Nigeria 1975, and awards tenable in Australia from March 1976 are referred to as Australia 1976.

ADMINISTRATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PLAN

The compilers of the Fifteenth Annual Report of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan wish to acknowledge the generally prompt completion and return of the questionnaire eliciting information for this document. Compilation of the report was, however, somewhat hampered by the failure of certain awarding countries to respond, thereby rendering completion of the statistical tables impossible.

A feature of this year's report is that the emoluments of Commonwealth Scholarships are given in full for the first time since the tenth Report (see Appendix II). This was felt to be desirable since there have been so many changes recently in the level of allowances due to worldwide inflation.

It is also worth noting that the Report on the Sixth Commonwealth Education Conference in Jamaica records the gratitude of delegates for the appearance of the Fourteenth Annual Report in time for the Conference. This gave them a valuable source of information which aided their discussion.

SUMMARY OF THE WORKING OF THE PLAN IN THE COMMONWEALTH COUNTRIES

AUSTRALIA

Australia is both an awarding and a recipient country under the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan. As a result of some changes in Australian Government administration in 1974, the Plan is now jointly administered by the Department of Education and the Australian Development Assistance Agency.

The number of scholarships current as at 30 June 1974 was ninety-nine, of which twenty-eight were at undergraduate level. As in previous years, a large proportion of scholarships taken up in Australia were for postgraduate studies. Scholars studying for Ph.D. degrees were offered awards for a period of up to three years, but, as in the past, consideration was given to requests for extension of awards. Awards were also tenable for bachelor degree studies, for courses not available in the candidates' own countries. Three Visiting Fellows, one Visiting Consultant and three Visiting Professors took up senior awards in Australia during the year.

In 1974 the Australian Government announced that fifty new awards would be made available under the Plan in future years. Eleven of these awards are being made available at the senior level. The publication 'Postgraduate Study at Australian Universities', along with the revised edition of 'A Directory of Courses' is made available to nominating agencies and Australian diplomatic posts.

Competition among graduates in Australia for awards offered by other Commonwealth countries continued to be keen. As at 31 March 1974 there were ninety-two Australians studying in other Commonwealth countries under the Plan.

CCM.MONWEALTH OF THE BAHAMAS

No changes have taken place in the machinery set up for the administration of the Plan in the Bahamas during this period.

The number of applicants for scholarships though small, continues to grow, and it is heartening to see that interest is now being expressed in awards tenable in countries other than Canada and the United Kingdom. Returning graduates have fitted in well and are making a meaningful contribution to the development of the country. Only one scholarship was extended beyond two years, for studies leading to an honours degree in Biochemistry.

Altogether, the Plan is operating in a very satisfactory way from our point of view as a nominating country.

BANGLADESH

The Ministry of Education continues to be the administering Agency of the Commonwealth Scholarship/Fellowship Plan in Bangladesh. The name of the Ministry has, however, been changed from the 'Ministry of Education, Cultural Affairs and Sports' to the 'Ministry of Education, Scientific and Technological Research and Atomic Energy'.

During the year under review, the awards were advertised in the press, over radio and television. Important steps in the process of selection comprised: making a short list of the candidates on the basis of academic records by a committee consisting of the representatives of the relevant Ministries; interviewing by a selection board consisting of representatives of awarding countries, if available, subject specialists, and the Chairman of the University Grants Commission as Chairman of the board; and finally the approval of the recommended candidates by the Government. There was very keen competition for the selection.

There is a tendency among the scholars to prolong their stay abroad after completion of their course. It is learnt that in some cases the awarding countries do not compel the scholars to return home after completion of their course. It is urged that the awarding countries should take positive steps to see that the scholars return home and start their careers thus contributing to the development of their countries with the expertise they gain abroad.

The Plan is useful and is operating well, and it is helping to strengthen the faculties of the universities in Bangladesh.

BARBADOS

There has been no change in the administrative machinery of the Plan during the period under review. The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, continues to advertise offers of awards as they are made available. The National Scholarships Committee which is appointed by the Minister of Education and includes representatives of business and professional organizations, interviews the applicants and makes its recommendations which are placed before the Minister for his consideration.

Under the Plan awards are made primarily for postgraduate study, and it is hoped that more awards could be made available at undergraduate level in some of the areas of study not available at regional institutions e.g. Pharmacy, Dentistry, Veterinary Science.

There are proposals for the publication of an official report on the operation of the Plan in Barbados.

BELIZE

The administrative machinery for the operation of the Plan remains the same. The Plan affords opportunities for postgraduate training. While the number taking advantage of this type of training is increasing, this country has been mostly taking advantage of awards to undergraduate students. Training at the undergraduate level is still our most pressing need. This country has no universities or colleges of higher education and therefore cannot make any awards. Offers of awards were received from the United Kingdom, Canada, Hong Kong, New Zealand, Trinidad and Tobago. Commonwealth Scholars return home and are contributing to the development of the country in their respective fields.

So far no official report has been written on the operation of the Plan in this country.

BOTSWANA

No report received.

BRITAIN

The Commonwealth Scholarship Commission under the Chairmanship of the Rt Hon Lord Garner, G.C.M.G., continued as the official agency of the Plan in Britain, its secretariat being provided by the Association of Commonwealth Universities, whose Secretary General, Sir Hugh W. Springer, K.C.M.G., C.B.E., and Assistant Secretary General, Mr E. E. Templer, act as Joint Secretaries.

The Commission is responsible for the selection and placing in UK universities of holders of British awards. It is also responsible for the preliminary selection and nomination of British candidates for awards made available under the Plan by other countries. As in previous years, problems have arisen due to the late (or even non) arrival of documents relating to other countries' nominees. This holds up the selection process and makes placement of successful candidates in universities more difficult. Difficulties are caused for some candidates when the scholarship agency in their home country does not tell them of their nomination or, subsequently, of their rejection if that occurs.

The welfare of Scholars and their families, travel arrangements and the payment of emoluments continued to be the responsibility of the British Council. Details of the emoluments are given in Appendix II. Just before the beginning of the session, newly arrived Scholars were officially welcomed when they attended the Commission's 'Welcome Programme' in London. The Programme, arranged by the British Council, gave Scholars the opportunity to meet other award holders and officials during a three-day period of discussions and outings.

There were two more regional conferences during the year under report: the Tenth was held in Liverpool in November 1974 and the Eleventh at Warwick University in March 1975. At these conferences, Scholars and their supervisors were able to exchange opinions and discuss their problems with Commission members, the secretariat and British Council officials. The Fourteenth Annual Dinner for departing Scholars and their wives was held in July 1974, the guest of honour being the Rt Hon Lord Redcliffe-Maud, G.C.B., K.C.B., C.B.E.

At the beginning of the 1974-75 academic session 599 Scholars were holding awards, together with 5 Visiting Professors, 50 Medical Fellows and 46 Academic Staff Fellows, making a total of 700. The Commission continued to make available awards for training at various levels in the field of medicine, the main aim being to further medical education in the Commonwealth. Medical Fellows come for a year's study in depth and then return to their teaching appointments in medical schools. Senior Medical Fellows spend three months in this country, the awards being open to professorial heads of department.

Universities and other nominating agencies in the developing Commonwealth countries have maintained their interest in securing Commonwealth Academic Staff Awards for their employees. Academic Staff Fellowships are normally held for nine months for a programme of study directly relevant to the needs of the holders' universities. Academic Staff Scholarships are more comparable with the long-standing Commonwealth Scholarships and may be held for periods of up to three years. The majority of Academic Staff Scholarships were again given to enable their holders to read for higher degrees but the Commission remains willing to make them available for other relevant training if the nominating university so wishes.

As in the last report, we give a separate analysis of the Academic Staff Scholarships held in view of their increasing importance. In the statistical tables in the Appendices these awards are included with the general Commonwealth Scholarships. Of the Academic Staff Scholars present during the first term of the 1974/75 academic year, two thirds were over 28 almost one third were between 26 and 28 and only a few were age 25 or below: the great majority of these award holders were men.

Country of permanent residence	Arts	Social Studies	Pure Sciences	Technology	Medicine	Dentistry	Agriculture and Forestry	Veterinary Science	Total
Bangladesh Botswana Fiji	1	1	3 1	1	1		2	1	9 1
Ghana Guyana Hong Kong	1 2	1	3 1	1 1 1	2				8
India Jamaica Kenya	4 1	1	4	2	1		1	1	14
Malaysia Malta	1	ł	4	2	1 1				1 7 2
Mauritius Nigeria Papua New	3	2	7	1 2	3		1	2	1 20
Guinea Rhodesia Sierra Leone	1 1	1	2						1 1 3
Sri Lanka Tanzania	2	-	22				1		4 3
Total	17	7	29	11	9	0	5	4	82

<u>Academic Staff Scholars holding awards during the first term</u> of the 1974/75 academic year by subject

The distribution of the 82 among the United Kingdom universities was as follows: Aberdeen 3; Aston 1; Birmingham 6; Bradford 1; Bristol 2; Cambridge 4; Dundee 2; East Anglia 1; Essex 2; Exeter 1; Glasgow 1; Ilull 1; Keele 1; Kent 1; Lancaster 1; Leeds 5; Liverpool 2; London 13; Loughborough 1; Manchester 4; UMIST 1; Newcastle 2; Nottingham 2; Oxford 1; Reading 3; Sheffield 1; Southampton 3; Stirling 1; Strathclyde 5; Surrey 1; Sussex 4; Wales 4; York 1. The most senior awards under the Plan are the Commonwealth Visiting Professorships. During the year under review the Commission received 48 nominations from 25 British universities for awards tenable during the academic sessions 1975-76 or 1976-77, showing a fall in the competition for these awards. Six Visiting Professorships were taken up for the academic year 1974-75 by nominees from Australia, Canada, New Zealand and India. Details of these, and of Scholars taking up awards in Britain, are given in the Appendices which accompany this report.

Of the 231 Scholars whose awards expired during the period 1 April 1974 to 31 March 1975, 43 are recorded as having qualified for doctorates, 36 for master's degrees, 10 for postgraduate diplomas, 7 for bachelor's degrees and 12 for higher medical qualifications awarded by bodies other than universities. 25 Scholars were engaged in research not for a higher degree and 10 resigned their awards. It should be noted that a small number of those people who were awarded a qualification obtained more than one. It is hoped that the results obtained by the remainder will be available for inclusion in the Sixteenth Annual Report.

An interim account was given in the Fourteenth Annual Report of the results obtained by Scholars whose awards expired during the period 1 April 1973 to 31 March 1974. Of the 250 Scholars completing the tenure of their awards during that period, 77 are now recorded as having received doctorates, 49 master's degrees, 8 postgraduate diplomac, 9 bachelor's degrees, 1 a first diploma and 16 higher medical qualifications awarded by bodies other than universities (one gaining two such qualifications). 16 Scholars resigned their awards, 2 failed their examinations and the remainder are either still studying for their degrees or await assessment for their theses.

The Commission received invitations from 11 countries to nominate British candidates for their awards. The availability of these awards was announced in the press and at universities throughout Britain and, as a result, 220 applications were received. This reversed the upward trend of last year. As usual, short-listed candidates were interviewed by panels consisting of Commission members and representatives of the High Commissioners of the awarding countries. Following the 71 nominations made during the previous reporting period, 37 awards were offered, and 26 candidates took up awards in seven countries.

Bermuda

There have been no additions or changes in the operation of the Plan since 1 April 1974. The Plan is operating very satisfactorily and we are particularly happy that Australia awarded a six-year medical scholarship to a Bermudian who began his studies at Hobart in March 1975.

The Plan has been very beneficial to Bermuda in the realms of Medicine and Education. Several physicians and teachers who took their professional training in the UK and Canada are currently serving the community well and one Commonwealth Scholar is pursuing research in Biology at the doctoral level in the UK.

There is no official report of the operation of the Plan in Bermuda in the offing.

British Virgin Islands

The Plan continues to be administered by the Chief Minister's Office with the BVI Scholarships Committee as the selection agency.

We are disappointed at the constant refusal by some awarding countries to give reasons for rejection of nominations or even to explain why no such reasons are given. This leads us to conclude that the reasons for rejection are based on shifting considerations which change from year to year.

The strong emphasis in the Plan on providing <u>postgraduate</u> awards does not harmonize with our priorities and needs which are for first degree and sub-degree courses. Canada, however, has been generous in granting requests for exemptions which, on our part, have become routine. The strong bias against awarding scholarships for beginning courses in <u>dentistry</u> causes us some hardship as there are no regional institutions offering dentistry training and no alternative sources of such awards. Commonwealth Scholars continue to return and to work in teaching or government service with high levels of performance. Two of our three Permanent Secretaries are former Commonwealth Scholars as is the Principal of the British Virgin Islands High School.

No official report on the operation of the Plan is published separately. The Plan continues to receive mention, along with others, in the annual report of the Department of Education.

Brunei

No additions or changes have taken place since 1 April 1974 in the machinery set up for the administration of the Plan in Brunei. Although there are an increasing number of officers eligible for postgraduate courses, they are greatly required in the Government service. The emphasis should therefore be on scholarships at undergraduate level, professional, technical and similar specialized fields of study.

Gibraltar

The Government of Gibraltar is satisfied with the working of the Plan. It would like to nominate more applicants for awards to a wider range of Commonwealth countries but finds difficulty in the context of its staffing requirements since nearly all applicants occupy key positions in Government Service and have to be replaced during their course of study.

Gilbert and Ellice Islands

As in previous years, the Gilbert and Ellice Islands Colony has been unable to participate in this scheme due mainly to the lack of suitably qualified candidates. Also there are few employment opportunities which require postgraduate qualifications. The situation is now improving and we hope to make some nominations in 1976.

Our principal need is for undergraduate courses, particularly those not available at the University of the South Pacific and, therefore, we would urge awarding countires to adopt a more liberal attitude in granting such awards. Alternatively, Commonwealth countries could assist the Colony by offering additional third-country awards for courses at the University of the South Pacific. A Manpower Planning Committee, established in 1973, is also responsible for ensuring that schemes such as CSFP are fully exploited in the national interest.

Hong Kong

The Education Department of the Hong Kong Government is responsible for the formation of the Selection Committee, the membership of which, as in previous years, represents a good cross-section of both higher and secondary education in Hong Kong together with the local representatives of the various Commonwealth awarding countries. The Chairman of the Committee is the Professor of a university Department of Science, and the Secretary is a Senior Education Officer of the Education Department. Hong Kong continues to derive very great benefit from the Plan and one of the criteria used in selecting candidates for nomination to awarding countries is the usefulness and relevance of the proposed research programme to the needs of the Hong Kong community. Competition for the awards is keen and the quality of applicants continues to be high.

As an awarding country, Hong Kong offers postgraduate scholarships tenable at the two universities. The Education Department of the Hong Kong Government acts as the administrative agency which appoints the Selection Committee and liaises between Committee members and the two universities in all matters relating to Hong Kong awards. There are at present six Scholarship holders studying for higher degrees in Architecture, Chinese Language, Inorganic Chemistry, Mechanical Engineering, Philosophy and Zoology. Three awards were made during the period under review.

Extension of tenure of awards beyond two years to enable scholars to study for the Ph.D. degree or for other purposes is considered in each case on its own merit.

New Hebrides

The education available in the New Hebrides is only of secondary level and below. Thus the CSFP operates in this Territory only to the extent of nominating candidates for awards. The nomination of candidates for awards in other Commonwealth countries has in the past, and will continue for some considerable time in the future, to be limited to requests for training at undergraduate level. Even at this level there is a lack of suitable candidates with the necessary university entrance qualifications. The greatest demand now, and in the next few years, will be for scholarships for artisan (apprentice) and commercial courses, where entrance qualification is generally the completion of three years of secondary education.

Consequently only two nominations have ever been made and accepted under the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan. One nominee failed to complete his course at the University of Queensland, Australia (1972). One further nominee has just started the final year of her training at the Australian National University, Canberra.

It is hoped that in future years the New Hebrides will be able to make greater use of the scholarships offered under the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan.

St Helena

St Helena, which is only a nominating country has not been able to make very great use of the Plan as few of our Secondary pupils have as yet gained the required O' and A' levels and are therefore not eligible for even the undergraduate scholarships.

Seychelles

The Colony of Seychelles is not an awarding country under this Plan. It is, however, a nominating country and in 1974/75 received invitations to nominate from the United Kingdom, Canada and New Zealand.

Two Seychellois students are presently engaged in studies in Canada under the Plan on awards made in 1970 and 1971.

The majority of applications for undergraduate studies are catered for by other bodies but appropriate nominations at that level will continue to be made to awarding countries under the Plan. Although the demand for postgraduate training from Seychelles is limited, it is instructive to note that consistent use has been made at this level of the facilities provided under the Plan in recent years.

The West Indies

Leeward Islands

Antigua

There have been no additions or changes made in the machinery set up for the administration of the Plan in Antigua since 1 April 1974.

As a nominating country, Antigua would like to name more candidates for a variety of courses not yet provided under the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan and would appreciate it if awards were of a more diversified nature. There were no activities undertaken under the Plan in the field of Visiting Fellowships or other senior awards.

Comments made by Scholarship holders on their return were favourable. Many expressed the view that their studies overseas had been highly beneficial.

Montserrat

The Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan is now administered locally by the Permanent Secretary for Manpower and Administration, Government Headquarters, Plymouth. All further correspondence should accordingly be addressed to him.

One Commonwealth Scholar, Miss Doris Bramble, currently studying at the University of Guelph, Ontario, Canada, has been granted an extension of her award to enable her to qualify for the Ph.D. in Nutrition.

No official report has been published or contemplated.

St Christopher, Nevis and Anguilla

There has been no alteration in the machinery of the administration of the Plan, or in the general working of the Plan, for the period 1 April 1974 to 31 March 1975.

No official report will be published on the operation of the Plan in this State.

Windward Islands

Dominica

No report received.

St Lucia

No additions or changes have taken place since April 1974 in the machinery set up for the administration of the plan in St Lucia.

By and large awarding countries indicated the number of nominations acceptable to them in any one year. In the operation of the Plan, however, there are certain drawbacks for the nominating country which should be noted. One of these drawbacks occurs if a nominee is rejected by a particular university in an awarding country, and that awarding country does not seek a place for him in an alternative university. Another occurs when a nominee is rejected or withdraws, and the nominating country is not given the chance to nominate a replacement for him. In these and other cases where a nominee is not available, the nominating country loses an opportunity to train an outstanding scholar or administrator for certain developments or projects. An arrangement to ensure that the nominating country does not suffer any loss of benefit in such circumstances would be appreciated.

Between 1960 and 1974, some 14 Scholarships and Fellowships have been received under the Plan. Those who have retrained and remained have contributed and are contributing significantly e.g. in agriculture and development education.

St Vincent

During the period 1 April 1974 to 31 March 1975 the Plan continued to be administered by the Service Commissions Department with the Assistant Secretary (Training) being responsible for the processing of applications and the forwarding of nominations to the Commonwealth Scholarship Commissions.

Two awards were received during the period for postgraduate study in the United Kingdom: one in the field of Anaesthetics and the other for a Postgraduate Certificate in Education. Also, two Vincentian Commonwealth Scholars completed their studies in the United Kingdom. They were Dr Greta Bowman who did Paediatrics at the University of Edinburgh and Mr John Commissiong who studied for a Ph.D. in Neuropharmacology at the University of Southampton.

CANADA

The Canadian Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Committee continues to be the official agency of the Plan in Canada, with the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada providing the Secretariat. The Government of Canada provides the funds for this Plan, and during the year under report approved an increase in the Living Allowance to \$295 per month for both graduates and undergraduates. In the first term of the 1974-75 academic session, 281 Scholars from $\angle 1$ Commonwealth countries were holding awards at 28 Canadian Universities. The Canadian Committee is very pleased with the success of the Plan in Canada and attributes much of this success to the co-operation of the Canadian university community.

With reference to previous annual reports, we should like to once again bring these points to the attention of our fellow agencies:

(i) It is not rare for a scholar at the Ph.D. level to need four years for the completion of this degree in Canada.

(ii) The minimum standard for acceptance into the majority of Canadian graduate schools is Second Class Upper Division.

(iii) It is absolutely necessary that a nominating country submit actual records of marks and courses undertaken: a certificate is of no use since it does not provide the details necessary for an academic competition.

Information on the courses available in Canadian Universities may be found in 'Universities and Colleges of Canada' which is published yearly by Statistics Canada.

CYPRUS

Cyprus has no institution of university level, but still offers a small number of awards for study, at a non-university college, in Forestry. In fact one such award was offered during the report year but it was not taken up. The Scholarship Agency continues to be the Ministry of Foreign Affairs. The responsible authority for the selection of candidates for nomination continues to be the Scholarship Board, c/o Ministry of Finance, Nicosia.

Commonwealth Scholarships are given wide publicity in Cyprus and attract a big number of applicants.

During the year under review Britain has made three awards to Cypriot candidates for undergraduate studies in Mathematical Physics, Chemical Engineering and Civil Engineering. Australia has offered two awards but only one was taken up for undergraduate studies in Chemistry. New Zealand has also made an award for postgraduate studies in Genetics. All other nominations made to those other Commonwealth Countries which invited such nominations i.e. Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago, Sri Lanka and Hong Kong, have been unsuccessful.

Britain has renewed the awards of two Scholars up to July 1975 to enable them to complete their B.Sc. degrees in Electical and Civil Engineering respectively and of two other Scholars up to July 1976 to enable them to complete their B.Sc. degrees in the same subjects.

During the period covered by the report two Scholars completed their studies in the United Kingdom having obtained the B.Sc. degrees in Civil Engineering and Economics, one completed his M.Sc. studies in Tropical Agriculture in Trinidad and Tobago and another one completed his postgraduate studies in Town and Country Planning in Australia. During this period (April 1974 to March 1975) there has been no major change in the machinery set up for the administration of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan in Fiji.

A point to appreciate has been the increase in the number of awards made available by Australia. We were offered 6 scholarships and they were for courses lasting four years and over. The Australian awards allow both post- and undergraduate studies. These awards, unlike the Canadian and New Zealand scholarships, are not restricted to any particular course or courses. There are 2 awarding countries, namely Australia and India who offer awards at undergraduate levels as well. There is no provision for postgraduate training in the Fiji Government Scholarship Scheme. So we are dependent on Commonwealth Awards. Scholarships are awarded according to the manpower needs of the country. We need the services of the Commonwealth Scholars and for this reason we are bonding them. Most of them have received postgraduate training in Engineering and Educational fields. We need local personnel in our own University, private firms, and Government Statutory bodies.

We publish an annual report on all training and scholarship matters, and the Commonwealth Awards are included in this.

At this point I would like to ask if we may receive results of our nominations earlier than usual in cases of Australian and Indian Awards. Nomination forms are submitted about 6 months prior to commencement of the academic year.

On the whole we are grateful for the training made possible through Commonwealth awards. We receive reports promptly and this is very much appreciated by us.

GAMBIA

No report received.

GHANA

No report received.

GRENADA

No report received.

GUYANA

The Public Service Ministry is still responsible for the administration of the Plan in Guyana. The applications, which are submitted in response to

advertisements to various sets of awards, are considered and suitable candidates are selected for nomination after they have been interviewed by a Scholarship Selection Committee. The Committee meets under the chairmanship of the Deputy Permanent Secretary. Other members are the Chief Education Officer, Ministry of Education - Deputy Chairman, the Chief Training Officer and the Chief Personnel Officer - Public Service Ministry, the Principal Personnel Officer - Public Service Commission and the Principal Assistant Secretary - Office of the Prime Minister. From time to time Specialists in particular fields are co-opted to advise the committee on the selection of candidates.

During the year, seven postgraduate awards were offered and taken up by scholars to pursue studies as indicated below:

Field of Study	Expected Qualification	Country of Study
Commonwealth and Overseas Education Administration	Diploma	United Kingdom
Power Electronics	M.Sc.	United Kingdom
Guyanese History	Diploma	United Kingdom
Commonwealth Literature	M. A .	United Kingdom
Geography	M.A.	Canada
Civil Engineering	M.Sc.	United Kingdom
Education	M.Ed.	United Kingdom

Two Scholars in the United Kingdom received extensions of their awards to continue their studies in Mathematical Computation and Pharmaceutical Chemistry. Another Scholar who completed her planned course of study in Electronics is now serving as a Lecturer at the University of Guyana.

I wish to point out that as the Scholarships are tenable in various Commonwealth countries and the academic years do not always coincide, it would be useful to co-relate all the information so that these awards may be advertised and processed at the same time rather than at different times during the year. This would not only obviate the necessity of repeating the process several times a year, but would reduce the work load which taxes our resources considerably.

Nevertheless, Guyana is grateful to those countries which invited us to submit nominations for award and looks forward to its continued participation in the Plan.

INDI A

There has been no change in the organizational machinery for the administration of the Plan, which continues to be popular with participating countries; and the Ministry of Education and Social Welfare, Government of India, is, as in previous years, responsible for its administration. The terms and conditions of the awards under the Plan have now been revised and the rates of maintenance allowance have been raised for Scholars pursuing undergraduate and postgraduate studies. Full details of the new rates appear in Appendix II.

Under the scheme for 1974-75 India offered 50 Scholarships and this offer was circulated to Commonwealth countries. In response to the offer, nominations were received from the Governments of the United Kingdom, Australia, Canada, New Zealand (including Western Samoa), Sri Lanka, Ghana, Malaysia, Nigeria, Cyprus, Sierra Leone, Tanzania, Kenya, Guyana, Fiji (including Tonga), Mauritius and Malawi. The awards utilized covered various fields of studies such as Buddhism, Architecture, Anthropology, Engineering, Education, Forestry, History, Medicine, Sociology, Journalism, Social Work, and Electronics. In its role as an awarding country India has found that a good number of applications are received for undergraduate studies, particularly from those Commonwealth countries which are less developed. The courses comprise studies at undergraduate level in Medecine and Engineering whose normal duration is 4 to 5 years. In view of this the scope of the scholarships should be extended to cover courses whose normal duration is more than two or three years.

Offers to India of awards for 1975 were received from the United Kingdom, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong, Nigeria, Trinidad and Tobago, Jamaica and Malta. As usual the awards covered a wide range of subjects and attracted several thousand applications, which reflected particular interest in Engineering and Technology, Basic Sciences, Medicine and Surgery, Agriculture, Veterinary Science, the Humanities and Social Sciences. Applications were also received for the study of Archaeology and Anthropology. Candidates were nominated on the recommendations of Panels of Experts appointed by the Ministry of Education and Social Welfare. In considering for which subjects nominations should be made, national priorities were kept in view.

As most of the candidates awarded Scholarships in previous years were employed and in many cases were sponsored by their employers, they returned to their jobs in India on completion of their studies/research abroad. Considerable benefit is derived both by the awardees and their employers from their experience gained abroad.

Revised editions of the following publications covering the needs of the students coming from abroad were available during the period:

(i) Directory of Institutions for Higher Education, published by the Ministry of Education and Social Welfare (Government of India), New Delhi.

(ii) Universities Handbook-India and Ceylon, issued by the Inter-University Board of India and Ceylon, New Delhi.

JAMAICA

No report received.

KENYA

No report received.

LESOTHO

On the whole, Lesotho does not seem to benefit much from the Plan, as her immediate need is for undergraduate, rather than postgraduate awards.

MALAWI

There has not been any change in the administrative machinery for the Plan in this country.

The operation of the Scheme is running very smoothly in Malawi. It is gratifying that we receive many applications to be considered under this Plan but due to the few places offered by awarding countries, we cannot place them all. Malawi does not award Scholarships.

It is a pleasure to report that when Scholars return home, they make a very big contribution to the country. Some become lecturers and agriculturalists while others enter statutory bodies.

I have to report that the Personnel Division has now moved from Zomba to Lilongwe, the full address being given in Appendix I of this report.

MALAYSIA

No report received.

MALTA

The Administration of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan is entrusted to the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Committee which sits under the chairmanship of the Director of Education.

Since 1 April 1974, four new scholarships have been awarded to enable Scholars to study for, respectively: a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering in Canada, an M.Sc. in Analytical Chemistry in the United Kingdom, an M.Sc. and D.I.C. in Engineering Hydrology in the United Kingdom, and an M.Sc. and D.I.C. in Concrete Structure and Technology in the United Kingdom. Five scholars are on scholarship during the current year: one is reading for an M.Phil in Chemistry (United Kingdom); one for a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering (Canada); one for an M.Eng. in Production Engineering (Canada); one for an M.Sc. in Structural Engineering (Australia); and one is reading for an M.R.C.P. in Neurology (United Kingdom). Furthermore, the local Commonwealth Scholarship Committee has recommended eight candidates for courses in the United Kingdom, Canada, Hong Kong and Australia; viz: one to read for a Ph.D. in Geophysics (United Kingdom); one for postgraduate study and surveys in Cardiology leading to the M.R.C.P. (United Kingdom); one for studies leading to a fellowship in Medical Radiodiagnosis (United Kingdom); one for studies leading to a Diploma in Dermatology (United Kingdom); one student to read for an M.Sc. in Architecture (Low Cost Housing) (Canada); one to read for an M.Sc. in Economics (The Economics of the Oil Industry) (Canada); one to read for an M.A. Education (Hong Kong); one to read for a Ph.D. in Organic Synthetics (Australia).

Malta awards one Scholarship under the Plan, tenable at the Royal University of Malta, to one Scholar from any country in the Commonwealth to enable him to read for a First or a Higher Degree. A candidate from Hong Kong is reading for a Degree in Medicine. This student will terminate his studies in June 1975 and a new Malta award tenable as from October 1975 has been advertised in all Commonwealth countries.

As a rule all Commonwealth Scholars return to Malta on completion of their scholarship. They are making valuable contributions in the fields of knowledge for which they received training.

Publicity in connection with these Scholarships is given through press releases and other means of communication (radio, television and the local relay system).

MAURITIUS

No report received.

NAURU

No additions or changes have taken place since 1 April 1974 in any aspects of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan.

It is hoped that applications for awards will be received in the current year and a nomination made if an invitation is received.

There are very few persons in Nauru who would be eligible for nomination for awards under the Plan, especially graduates, at the present time. However, there should be more people eligible over the next few years as the current education plan progresses.

NEW ZEALAND

There have been no new developments in the operation of the Commonwealth Scholarship Plan in New Zealand this year but the Committee was able to offer Scholarships to twelve postgraduate applicants from various parts of the Commonwealth. It has been disappointing that so many of the candidates nominated for our awards still have degrees with less than the required minimum standard of upper second class honours for those who wish to study for a Ph.D. degree, and an average of B for those who wish to study for other courses. New Zealand has been able to nominate candidates for Scholarships offered by Britain, Canada and Australia but can still find little interest in offers from other parts of the Commonwealth.

The only visitor to New Zealand under the Prestige Fellowships Scheme during 1974 was Professor James Eells of the Department of Mathematics, University of Warwick.

NIGERIA

The title and the address of this Agency is still the Scholarships Section, Federal Ministry of Education, Lagos.

Nigeria's offers to the other Commonwealth countries, had increased from ten in 1973 to fifteen in 1974 and remains the same for 1975-76. Two extensions of tenure to cover Ph.D. work were made in 1974. No awards were made for academic, professional, and technical courses at undergraduate level or non-graduate level in the report year; and no short term visits by senior educationists or administrators were sponsored.

Our peculiar problem as a nominating country has always been the insufficiency of allocations of awards for our many highly-qualified candidates. We would appeal for larger allocations to cope with our sizeable number of applications. As an awarding agency, we are beginning to face up to the gradual but steady demands of our beneficiaries for increased allowances to enable them to cope with the inflationary costs of goods. Their demands are being considered.

Nigeria, as one of the largest beneficiaries from the CSFP, is naturally enthusiastic about its continuation. We believe that the Plan is achieving the main objectives for which it was established and would support its enlargement.

This Agency has not yet established a programme for sponsorship of Visiting Fellowships or other senior awards under the scheme; but the establishment of such awards is still contemplated depending on the co-operation of Nigerian universities.

Many of our Commonwealth Scholars return to Nigeria to take up jobs as university teachers or medical research doctors. The Scheme in this way has constituted a means of equipping our eligible graduates with higher academic and professional expertise for the universities and research institutes and other establishments.

The administration of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan in this report period witnessed the introduction of overseas interviews for the Nigerian overseas applicants. Interviews were conducted in both London and Ottawa this time and the reponse was good and encouraging. It also did not appear that the Nigerian Missions encountered any undue difficulties in conducting the interviews. The results of these interviews were assessed together with those of our local interviews to reach a decision on nominations. It is hoped by this measure to afford overseas applicants equal opportunities with their local counterparts.

RHODESIA

Due to current circumstances it has not been possible to include a report on the working of the Plan in Rhodesia for 1974-75. The number of Rhodesian Scholars studying in other countries is included in the statistical tables in Appendix V. The applications for awards tenable in Britain in the coming academic year were received through the Overseas Development Ministry in London.

SIERRA LEONE

No additions or changes have taken place since 1 April 1974 in the machinery set up for the administration of the Plan in Sierra Leone. It continues to be administered by the Ministry of Education after wide publicity of the offers of scholarships.

Since 1 April 1974 Sierra Leone has received an offer of a Scholarship from the Government of Malta under the scheme. One award was made by the British Government for Engineering Education, but no awards were made for social, rural or adult education.

As a nominating country we find the operation of the Plan efficient and an increased number of awards would be welcome. We are making plans to recommence our activities as an awarding country from next year.

The Plan is working efficiently from this country's point of view as the offers are made well before the closing date of receipt of nominations in the awarding country, and furthermore, it provides us with an opportunity of training our manpower for work in the higher echelons. On their return Commonwealth Scholars assume responsible posts either in the private or public sector, or in institutions of Higher Education and make full use of the knowledge they acquire during their course of study.

SINGAPORE

The Public Service Commission continued to administer the Plan and no changes or additions have taken place in the administration of the Plan for the period under review.

Eleven new Scholarships were awarded to Singapore by Australia, Canada, Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. They were utilized for postgraduate studies in Medicine, Engineering, Economics, Business Administration and Linguistics. One Scholar in Canada was granted an extension to her Scholarship to enable her to complete the Ph.D. degree in Educational Testing and Measurement. There were no Scholarships at the undergraduate level.

Commonwealth Scholars, on their return, serve in the public sector or institutions of higher learning. They make valuable contributions, having profited from their studies under the Plan.

SRI LANKA

The Ministry of Education continues to be the Agency responsible for the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan in Sri Lanka. No additions or changes have taken place in the existing programme for the year under review.

In three cases extensions of tenure have been granted beyond two years to enable Scholars to qualify for the Ph.D. degree. Two of these are in the field of Agronomy and one in History.

It was mentioned in my last report that opportunities for short-term awards would be welcomed in order to encourage candidates doing research in their own countries and going out to another country only to get acquainted with any latest developments and techniques in their fields. This was also discussed during the Sixth Commonwealth Education Conference, but apparently no definite plans have been worked out by the major awarding countries. I trust that the authorities will pay attention to the detailed working out of such a scheme.

It is observed that there is a slight improvement in the position of Scholars returning to Sri Lanka after their studies abroad. The Government of Sri Lanka also has worked out several schemes in order to encourage Scholars returning to the country. One such concession is the granting of a five year no-pay leave period for professionals and others to study/work abroad. Their jobs will be kept for them on their return.

SWAZILAND

Swaziland has not availed itself of the Plan for the past few years but hopes to do so again from 1975.

TANZANIA

Since 1 April 1974 there has not been an expansion of the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan as far as Tanzania is concerned. Most of the Commonwealth Scholarships and Fellowships are offered at graduate level in professional, technical and specialized fields. Awards for social, rural and adult education are few while those of short term visits by senior educationists or administrators are inadequate.

Generally it is felt that the operation of the Plan is satisfactory although there is a need for awarding countries to increase the number of awards in order to avoid unnecessary competition. For instance, country A may advertise two Scholarships for all interested Commonwealth countries to apply for. Furthermore there is a need of movement of Scholars under Commonwealth awards and if possible, Commonwealth awards should be tenable in any Commonwealth country.

Regarding Commonwealth Scholars, there is an indication that students have benefited from the experience gained in the course of their studies.

TONGA

The Ministry of Education continues to administer the awards under the Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Plan and the machinery for its operation has remained unchanged.

Tonga is a nominating country only as there are no facilities for tertiary education. Tonga's requirements are mainly for first degree courses and we would appreciate it if more awards could be made available at this level.

The Plan has been very beneficial to Tonga and the fields of study requested have been carefully selected in relation to the manpower requirement of Tonga.

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

In addition to the procedures already laid down with respect to the administration of the Plan in this country, each scholar nominated by this country and accepted by the awarding country is required to sign an agreement providing for service with the Government of Trinidad and Tobago in such capacity and at such remuneration as the Government may determine upon successful completion of the award. The Government of Trinidad and Tobago continues to offer one postgraduate award in Tropical Agriculture annually at the University of the West Indies, Trinidad.

There has been no activity in the field of visiting Fellowships or other senior awards. Commonwealth Scholars who have been nominated by this country and who have returned to this country during the period under review, have taken up or resumed duties in professional posts in the public service or with private enterprise.

UGANDA

The administrative machinery for the selection of candidates remained more or less the same as in previous years. Efficiency was maintained because the Committee was executive in nature compared to the previous one which was advisory. Applicants for the awards continued to increase, but the process of selection and submission of documents was completed in time.

Applications for postgraduate awards were so numerous that all our nominations except one were for postgraduate courses. Almost all the nominations were in Scientific, Commercial and Technical fields and none in the Liberal Arts on account of the high priority manpower requirements in these disciplines. Regarding undergraduate awards candidates with the required qualifications were absorbed by our own National Universities in East Africa.

Once again, we are very grateful to all the member countries which have offered us training facilties under the Plan for their co-operation and continued interest in our development. We note with regret that no awards were offered us by the British Government for the 1974-75 academic year as well as the previous 1973-74 academic year. Doubtless, the applications were much higher for the Scholarships and Fellowships than in previous years and the calibre of applicants was very high indeed. Returning Scholars continue to be absorbed into the Civil Service, Parastatal bodies and academic institutions depending on their educational achievements.

WESTERN SAMOA

Vestern Samoa being a young developing country, her needs for trained manpower are mainly at the undergraduate level. It has been difficult to accommodate the CSFP awards as these are generally for postgraduate studies. However, some awarding countries have been lenient and we have been able to send scholars for undergraduate studies to some of the following countries: Canada, Australia, Malaysia, India, United Kingdom, Cyprus, Malta.

ZAMBIA

There have been no additions or changes in the machinery for the working of the Plan in Zambia between 1 April 1974 and 31 March 1975. The Government has not yet decided to take on the responsibilities of an awarding country.

We won awards for the following candidates: Mr Dhansukh M. Naik (Canada), Mr Inyambo L. Myumbu (Canada), Mr Samuel Chinyoka (Canada), Mr E. H. Mwanangonze (Canada), Mrs M, Mvunga (Britain), Mr B. C. Kakoma (Britain), Dr Munkonge (Britain).

We wish to express deep appreciation for the manner in which the Commonwealth Scholarship Plan is assisting Zambia by offering Scholarships.

APPENDIX I

LIST OF COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP AGENCIES

(Addresses as at 1 July 1975)

AUSTRALIA	The Director, Office of the Australian Development Assistance Agency, P. O. Box 887, Canberra 2601.
BAHAMAS	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education and Culture, P. O. Box 3913, Nassau.
BANGLADESH	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Scientific and Technological Research and Atomic Energy, Government of Bangladesh, Dacca 2.
BARBADOS	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, St Michael.
BELIZE	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Housing and Labour, Belmopan.
BOTSWANA	Chief Education Officer, Ministry of Education, Private Bag 005, Gaborone.
BRITAIN	The Joint Secretary, Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom, 36 Gordon Square, London WC1H OPF.
Bermuda	Chief Education Officer, Department of Education, Point Finger Road, Paget 6.
British Solomon Islands	The Financial Secretary, The Secretariat, Honiara.
British Virgin Islands	The Secretary, British Virgin Islands Scholarships Committee, Government of The British Virgin Islands, Tortola.
Brunei	H E The High Commissioner for Brunei, Office of the High Commissioner for Brunei.
Gibraltar	The Director of Education, Department of Education, 227 Main Street.

Gilbert and Ellice Islands	The Chief Secretary, Central Government Offices, P. O. Box 68, Bairiki, Tarawa.
Hong Kong	The Director of Education, Education Department, Lee Gardens, Hysan Avenue.
New Hebrides	The Chief Education Officer, Education Department, British Residency, Vila, Efate.
St Helena	The Education Officer, Education Department, Jamestown.
Seychelles	The Director of Education, The Secretariat, Queen's Building, Mahe.
West Indies Leeward Islands	
<u>Antigua</u>	The Chief Education Officer, Ministry of Education, Health and Culture, St. John's.
Montserrat	The Permanent Secretary, Manpower and Administration, Governor's Office, Plymouth.
St Kitts, Nevis and Anguilla	Permanent Secretary, Establishment Division, Government Headquarters, P. O. Box 186, St Kitts.
West Indies Windward Islands	
Dominica	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education and Health, Government
	Headquarters, Roseau.
<u>St Lucia</u>	The Permanent Secretary (Education), Ministry of Education and Health, Castries.
<u>St Lucia</u>	The Permanent Secretary (Education), Ministry of Education and Health,
	The Permanent Secretary (Education), Ministry of Education and Health, Castries. Assistant Secretary (Training), Service
St Vincent	The Permanent Secretary (Education), Ministry of Education and Health, Castries. Assistant Secretary (Training), Service Commission Department, Kingstown. The Secretary, Canadian Commonwealth Scholarship and Fellowship Committee,

THE G A MBIA	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Youth and Social Welfare, Government of the Gambia, Banjul.
GHANA	The Registrar of Scholarships, Scholarships Secretariat, P. O. Box M 75, Ministry Branch Post Office, Accra.
GRENADA	The Senior Assistant Secretary, Training Division, Prime Minister's Office, St George's.
GUYANA	The Permanent Secretary, Public Service Ministry (Training Divison), 65/67 High Street, Kingston, Georgetown.
INDI A	The Deputy Educational Adviser (ES), Ministry of Education and Social Welfare, Government of India, Post Box No. 445, New Delhi 1.
	(for Commonwealth Academic Staff Fellowships and Commonwealth Academic Staff Scholarships): The Additional Secretary, University Grants Commission, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi 1.
JAMAICA	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, 2 National Heroes' Circle, P. O. Box 498, Kingston.
KENYA	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Jogoo House, Harmabee Avenue, P. O. Box 30040, Nairobi.
LESOTHO	The Permanent Secretary for Education, Ministry of Education, P. O. Box 47, Maseru.
MALAWI	Secretary to the President and Cabinet, (Personnel Division), P. O. Box 30227, Capital City, Lilongwe 3.
MALAYSIA (all States)	The Secretary, Malaysian Liaison Committee, Commonwealth Education Scheme, Ministry of Education, Federal House, Kuala Lumpur.
MALTA	The Director of Education, Education Office, 32/33 M'Xetto Road, Valletta.
MAURITIUS	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education and Cultural Affairs, Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis.

NAURU	The Secretary, Department of Health and Education.
NEW ZEALAND	The Chairman, Commonwealth Scholarships and Fellowships Committee, University Grants Committee, University House, P. O. Box 8035, Wellington C 1.
NIGERIA	The Permanent Secretary, Federal Ministry of Education, Scholarships Division, Lagos.
RHODESIA	North Africa and Africa General Department, The Ministry of Overseas Development, Eland House, Stag Place, London SW1E 5DH.
SIERRA LEONE	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, New England, Freetown.
SINGAPORE	The Secretary, Public Service Commission, Supreme Court Building, Singapore 6.
SRI LANKA	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Malay Street, Colombo 2.
SWAZILAND	The Permanent Secretary, Prime Minister's Office, Department of Establishments and Training, P. O. Box 170, Mbabane.
TANZANIA	The Principal Secretary, Ministry of Education, P. O. Box 9121, Dar es Salaam.
TONGA	The Director of Education, Education Department, P. C. Box 61, Nuku'alofa.
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO	The Chief Personnel Cfficer, Personnel Department, Training Section, 13/15 St Clair Avenue, Port-of-Spain.
UGANDA	The Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education, Crested Towers, P. O. Box 7063, Kampala.
WESTERN SAMOA	The Commonwealth Scholarships Agency for Western Samoa, c/o The Office of the New Zealand High Commission, New Zealand House, Haymarket, London SW1Y 4TQ.

ZAMBIA	The Secretary, Bursaries Committee,
	Ministry of Education and Culture,
	P. O. Box RW 93, Ridgeway, Lusaka.

APPENDIX II

COMMONWEALTH SCHOLARSHIP EMOLUMENTS

Commonwealth Scholarships are normally intended to cover return fares, fees, an allowance for maintenance and books and certain other expenses. They are usually open only to persons under 35 years of age who are Commonwealth citizens or British protected persons and resident in Commonwealth countries other than the awarding country. They are tenable at a university or other institution of higher learning in the awarding country and are normally awarded for advanced study or research to graduates or holders of an equivalent qualification. Under certain circumstances an award may be made to enable a student to proceed to a first degree or to a graduate who wishes to undertake further undergraduate study. The normal period of tenure is two academic years, but awards may be made for shorter or longer periods. The conditions and emoluments of awards are determined by the various awarding countries and are set out below.

AUSTRALIA

Emoluments for Australian Scholarships include:

(a) Travel to and from Australia generally by tourist class air and by the most direct route. (This is for the scholar only, no provision is made for the travel of dependants.)

(b) Fees- all compulsory fees.

(c) Living allowances - paid fortnightly at the rate of \$A2925 per annum for postgraduate scholars and \$A2276 per annum for undergraduate scholars from date of arrival in Australia.

(d) Clothing allowances - up to a maximum for \$A147 in approved cases.

(e) Marriage allowance - for a male married scholar at the rate of \$A700 per annum during the time the scholar's wife is with him in Australia. This will not be payable in respect of a wife who holds a scholarship herself or who is in paid employment.

Note - the allowance of \$A700 is provided only as a contribution towards the support of a scholar's wife in Australia. A scholar accompanied by his wife will need other resources to supplement this allowance.

(f) Vacation Travel within Australia - up to a maximum of \$A100.

(g) Other supplementary allowances - additional allowances may be made for an unusually high cost of essential books and for extraordinary medical expenses.

Benefits payable to students receiving full-time education at a university or college are not taxable in Australia.

BRITAIN

The emoluments are intended to cover expenses of travel, living, and study during tenure of the Scholarship, and will consist of:

(a) Student concessionary or other approved air fares to Britain and return on expiry of the Scholarship (the cost of journeys made before the receipt of awards will not normally be reimbursed).

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) Personal maintenance allowance at the rate of $\pounds 110$ per month.

(d) A grant for books and apparatus of £55 during the first year of study and of £40 for each complete year of study thereafter; and a grant of up to £40 towards the cost of typing and binding one thesis (where applicable).

(e) A grant for expenses of approved study travel within Britain of up to £40 a year.

(f) An initial clothing grant of £65 for such scholars coming from tropical countries as are recommended to receive it.

(g) For male scholars accompanied by their wives, a marriage allowance at the rate of £44 per month, and allowances at the rate of £9, £7 and £5 per month respectively for the first, second and third of their children under the age of 16 who are with them in Britain. A marriage allowance will not be payable in respect of a wife who holds an award herself or who is in full-time paid employment.

A female scholar accompanied by her husband is not eligible for a marriage allowance, but if she is a widow or divorced, and is legally responsible for her children, she is eligible for children's allowance provided they accompany her.

These emoluments are not subject to United Kingdom income tax.

CANADA

Emoluments of a Canadian Commonwealth Scholarship:

Each scholarship is intended to cover the expenses of travel, living and study during its tenure, and includes: (a) Transportation to Canada and return, normally by the most direct economy air passage, as arranged by the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada.

(b) Approved tuition and other university fees (excluding board and residence).

(c) A personal maintenance allowance of \$295.00 per month.

(d) Approved medical and hospital expenses.

(e) A book allowance of \$150.00 during each year of study.

(f) In special circumstances an allowance for special books, equipment and supplies not available in the university.

(g) A clothing allowance of \$250.00 during the first year of study and \$15.00 per month in subsequent years.

(h) In special cases provision for travel within Canada up to a total of \$800.00 if it is an essential part of the scholar's academic programme.

For a scholar who was married before coming to Canada, (i) a marriage allowance of \$150.00 per month while the spouse resides with the scholar in Canada, plus two-thirds of the cost of the spouse's fare to Canada and return as arranged by the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada. The spouse's return fare must be prepaid before the spouse's departure for Canada. These payments will be made only if there is adequate assurance that the scholar's spouse will be living in Canada for at least six consecutive months of the tenure of a scholarship and provided the spouse does not hold a scholarship or fellowship in Canada; if the spouse of the scholar wishes to seek paid employment, prior permission must be obtained from the Department of Manpower and Immigration and from the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada. These conditions apply at any time during the period of the scholarship. If the spouse is employed, there will be a dollar for dollar reduction in the marriage allowance during the period of employment. It is essential for married scholars bringing children to Canada to have additonal financial resources.

These payments are not taxable in Canada.

GHANA

Scholars will receive:

(a) Fare, to and from Ghana, by Tourist/Economy Air, and up to $N \not\subset 100$ for transportation and baggage.

(b) A subsistence allowance of NC1540 per annum, from which the scholar has to pay charges for board and accommodation. (Postgraduate students in residence at the University of Ghana, for example, have to pay NC280 per annum for board and accommodation.)

(c) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(d) Cost of books and apparatus up to NC60 per annum.

(e) Initial clothing allowance of N $\not\subset$ 80 for scholars who normally reside in temperate climates.

(f) An allowance of NQ50 per annum to cover the cost of travelling within Ghana, in connection with the scholar's studies or research.

(g) Scholars will normally be housed in a University Hall of Residence. It is not possible to provide housing for a scholar who is accompanied by his wife. There is, however, no objection to a scholar bringing his wife with him as long as he takes full responsibility for her support and accommodation.

These allowances are not subject to Ghana Income Tax.

HONG KONG

Emoluments of the Hong Kong Scholarships include:

(a) Return passages (normally by the most direct economy air passage).

(b) University fees.

(c) Maintenance allowance - HK\$1500 per month.

(d) An additional maintenance allowance HK\$1100 per month will be paid to a married scholar (who will have to find his own accommodation) provided that he is married at the time of submitting his application. His wife's passage will be paid only on the same condition.

(e) Books and apparatus allowance - HK\$400 for each year of study.

(f) Additional travel allowance - HK\$400 per month. Clothing allowance (if necessary) - HK\$640 or £40 sterling if spent outside Hong Kong.

(g) Medical facilities: Normal University Health Service and free medical treatment in Government hospitals. These do not include hospital maintenance fees, dental and opthalmic treatment, nor the cost of any hearing aids or appliances.

The above emoluments are not taxable in Hong Kong.

INDIA

Each Scholarship is intended to cover the expenses of travel, living and study during its tenure, which will be as follows:

(a) Transportation to India and return, normally by first class rail to scholars within India, air passage by tourist or economy class from the port of embarkation in the home country to the port of disembarkation in India and back.

OR

Sea passage from the port of embarkation in the home country to the nearest port of disembarkation in India and back Tourist class of the appropriate grade, where available, otherwise Cabin class, if available, or else First class (sharing a cabin).

(b) Approved tuition and other compulsory university fees (excluding board and residence).

(c) A personal maintenance allowance at the rate of Rs.350 per month for undergraduate studies and Rs.450 per month for postgraduate studies.

(d) A grant for books or equipment subject to a maximum of Rs.300 per annum.

(e) Approved medical expenses.

(f) A grant for expenses of approved study tours within India and for attending approved holiday or youth welfare camps at prescribed rates.

(g) An outfit allowance of Rs.200 only on joining the institution.

These payments are not taxable in India.

There is no provision for any additional allowance if a scholar brings his family with him.

JAMAICA

The emoluments are intended to cover expenses of travel, living and study during the tenure of the scholarship, and will consist of:

(a) Fares (normally tourist class sea or air rates) to Jamaica and return on expiry of the scholarship; in the case of a male married scholar accompanied by his wife, half the return passage to Jamaica will be paid in respect of his wife, provided the duration of the course is more than one academic year.

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) Personal maintenance allowance at the rate of \$2,400 per annum for graduates and \$70 per month for undergraduates.

(d) A grant of \$200 a year for books and apparatus.

(e) A grant for expenses of approved travel in connection with the course of up to \$50 per year.

(f) A clothing allowance of \$50 for scholars coming from temperate countries.

(g) For male married scholars accompanied by their wives, a marriage allowance at the rate of \$800 per annum. This allowance will not be payable unless the scholar was a married man at the time of his application and will also not be payable in respect of a wife who holds a scholarship herself or who is in paid employment.

MALAYSIA

The value of the award has been fixed so that under normal circumstances the maintenance allowance and other benefits will cover the expense of travel, living and study of the scholar during tenure of the scholarship. The following payments will be made:

(a) Travel to and from Malaysia by tourist class sea or air by the most direct route as arranged by the Malaysian Liaison Committee. (No provision is included for expenses of dependants except for the wife who is accompanying the scholar.)

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) A personal maintenance allowance, payable monthly, at the rate of M\$6,000 per annum.

(d) A grant for books or equipment of M\$150 per annum.

(e) A grant of up to M\$200 per annum for approved travel within Malaysia.

(f) An additional marriage allowance at the rate of M\$1,200 per annum for a male married scholar accompanied by his wife. The allowance will not be payable during the first year of the tenure of the scholarship unless the scholar was married at the time of his application for an award and will not be payable if the wife herself holds a scholarship or is in paid employment while in Malaysia.

(g) Approved medical hospital expenses with the exception of the following:

- (i) hearing aids
- (ii) spectacles
- (iii) any form of dental treatment.

MALTA

The value of the scholarship will include the payment of:

(a) Fares from and to the country of origin.

(b) A maintenance allowance of $\pounds M 600$ per annum.

(c) A marriage allowance of \pounds M240 per annum; this allowance will not be paid when the scholar's wife is in employment, or when the wife does not accompany the scholar to Malta.

(d) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(e) A book and equipment allowance of $\pounds M50$ for the whole course.

NEW ZEALAND

The value of the award has been fixed so that under normal circumstances the living allowance and other benefits will cover the scholars' expenses of travel, living and study during tenure of the scholarship. The following payments will be made:

(a) Travel to and from New Zealand by tourist class sea or air passage as arranged by the New Zealand authorities. (No provision has been included for the expenses of dependants.)

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) A personal maintenance allowance at the rate of NZ\$210 per month from the date of arrival in New Zealand.

(d) A refund of actual and reasonable expenditure on necessary books up to NZ\$150 per year subject to the books on the list being certified by the scholar's supervisor as necessary for the scholar's course.

(e) Where appropriate, a clothing allowance of up to NZ \$150 - this will apply in the main to scholars coming from tropical countries.

(f) Medical and hospital expenses with the exception of the following:

- (i) hearing aids
- (ii) spectacles

(iii) any form of dental treatment.

(g) Marriage and child allowances to a male married scholar provided his wife neither holds a scholarship herself nor is in paid employment:

Marriage allowance	-	NZ \$ 50	a month	
Child allowances			a week for one child	
	-	NZ\$7	a week for two or more children	

(h) The Scholarships Committee, on the recommendation of the Head of the Department in which the scholar is working, may make grants in aid of internal travel and field expenses connected with the scholar's programme.

The allowances are not taxed in New Zealand.

NIGERIA

Each scholarship is intended to cover expenses of travel, living and study during tenure of the award, and will consist of:

(a) Fares - normally first class sea or tourist air passage to Nigeria and return to the candidate's country of origin on completion of study or research. The cost of journeys made before receipt of an award will not normally be reimbursed.

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) A personal allowance of \$1,560.

(d) An allowance of $\frac{1}{260}$ a year for books and apparatus.

(e) An allowance for approved travel in Nigeria for the purpose of study or research, not exceeding \$200.

(f) A clothing allowance of \$100 for scholars from temperate countries.

As hostels in Nigerian universities are designed presently for single students and because suitable lodgings may not be readily available, candidates for the awards are expected to be single or if married to leave their families behind.

SRI LANKA

Each scholarship is intended to cover expenses of travel, living and study during the period of tenure, as follows:

(a) Transportation to Sri Lanka and return as arranged by the Sri Lanka authorities.

(b) Approved tuition, laboratory and examination fees.

(c) Personal maintenance allowance up to a maximum of Rs.500 per month.

(d) A grant of Rs.250 per annum for approved books and apparatus (subject a limit of Rs.500 for the whole course).

(e) A grant of Rs.350 per annum for approved travel within Sri Lanka.

(f) Free medical treatment. Reimbursement of any medical expenses for treatment rendered by a private doctor or private hospital will not be entertained except under exceptional or extenuating circumstances.

Note: The allowances may vary in the case of undergraduate scholarships.

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

The following expenses will be met:

(a) Passage from the nominating country to Trinidad and back for the scholar as arranged by the Government of Trinidad and Tobago.

(b) Tuition and examination fees.

(c) Any other compulsory university fees (excluding board and residence fees but including refundable deposits such as Caution Money, which will be paid by and refunded to the Government of Trinidad and Tobago).

(d) Cost of approved travelling connected with the course of study in Trinidad and Tobago to a maximum of TT \$200 per annum. (This is not intended to cover travelling from the normal places of residence to the University.)

(e) Book allowance of TT \$240 per annum.

(f) A personal Maintenance Allowance of TT \$300 per month to cover board and lodging, daily travel and personal expenses.

(g) Reasonable hotel charges for a period of 1 week after arrival in Trinidad (hotel accommodation to be arranged by the Government of Trinidad and Tobago) to permit the scholar to find suitable accommodation.

If the scholar is accompanied by his wife and/or children:

(h) A wife allowance of TT \$1,440 per annum provided that she is not employed.

(i) Allowances of TT \$360 per annum for the first child and TT \$288 per annum each for the second and the third child. Allowances are not paid for more than three (3) children.

The above allowances are not subject to tax in Trinidad and Tobago.

APPENDIX III

Register of Commonwealth Scholars who have taken up awards during the period under report

This Register is intended to provide a complete and permanent record for reference purposes of all persons who have held Commonwealth Scholarships in any country. The present list shows those Commonwealth Scholars who have taken up awards in the various awarding countries at any time during the year under report. It does not include, except where previously omitted in error, the names of scholars who took up awards before 1 April 1974 (the beginning of the present reporting period). Table 4 in Appendix V shows in statistical form how the Scholars listed in the Register were distributed in the various Commonwealth countries.

AUSTRALIA

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Arnold, P.W. Bin Yahaya, M. Cheam, A.H. Costa, T.M.(Miss) Evans, G. Finau, S.	Canada Malaysia Malaysia Cyprus Britain Tonga	James Cook Melbourne Sydney Melbourne Sydney South Australian Institute of	Zoology Physics Weed Science Applied Chemistry Animal Physiology Mechanical Engineering
Frith-Brown, S.M. Honu, B.	Bermuda Ghana	Technology Tasmania Australian National	Medicine Agricultural Development Economics
Jamnadas, J. Kagoda, S.P. Lam, K.C. Law, P.L.R. Martin, G.M.	Fiji Uganda Hong Kong Singapore Canada	Queensland Melbourne New England New England Australian National	Medicine Engineering Geography Economics Psychology
Mba, H.C. Mupunda, M.M. Naidu, P.C.	Nigeria Zambia Fiji	Sydney Monash Melbourne	Surveying Law Aeronautical Engineering
Nayyar, V.K. Niuwieitolu, V.	India Tonga	Adelaide South Australian Institute of Technology	Soil Science Mechanical Engineering
Oloko, O.A.	Nigeria	Melbourne	Veterinary
O'Neal, M.	Barbados	Adelaide	Science Computing
Osazuwa, J.E.	Nigeria	Sydney	Science Natural Resources

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Parfett, R. Peleskikoti, K.P.	Britain Tonga	Queensland South Australian Institute of Technology	Parasitology Pharmacy
Prime, S.	Britain	Melbourne	Oral Pathology and Medicine
Rashid, M.A.	Bangladesh	Flinders	Clinical Psychology
Sharma, S.R. Somani, L.L. Stening, B.	Fiji India New Zealand	Melbourne Adelaide New South Wales	Medicine Soil Fertility Business
Stowe, S.(Miss)	New Zealand	Australian National	Administration Neurobiology
Tukahirwa, E.M.	Uganda	Waite Agricultural Research Institute	Enthomology
Tukana, S.	Fiji	Monash	Mechanical Engineering
Verma, S.K.	India	Macquarie	Geophysics
Ward, P.	Canada	Australian National	Microbial- Genetics
Warren-Wilson, Mary (Miss)	Britain	Australian National	Microbial- Genetics
Wenger, L.	Canada	Adelaide	Psychology
Wijegekera, T.P.	Sri Lanka	Sydney	Organic Chemistry
Zakaria, A.	Ghana	Melbourne	Valuation
Zeenat Ut Noor,Z. (Miss)	Bangladesh	Australian National	Solid State Physics

BRITAIN

Abdul Karim, W.J.B. (Miss)	Malaysia	London	Anthropology
Adnan, Md.A. bin	Malaysia	London	Economics
Agarwal, M.S.	India	Liverpool	Electrical Engineering
Agarwal, R.P.	India	Newcastle-upon- Tyne	Electrical Engineering
Ahmad, Firoz.	India	Exeter	Chemistry
Ahmed, Monir	Bangladesh	Manchester	Minerology
Akanwa, H.A.	Nigeria	Women's Hospital Wolverhampton	Obstetrics & Gynaecology
Akello, R.J.	Kenya	Wales	Electronic Engineering
*Ale, S.O.	Nigeria	Southampton	Mathematics
*Alexander, P.O.	India	Leeds	Geochemistry
Allie, E.G.	Sierra Leone	London	Urban Geography
Amerasinghe, F.P.		Bristol	Zoology
Amonoo-Kuofi, H.S.	. Ghana	London	Anatomy

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Amponsah, D.K.	Ghana	Reading	Construction Management
Arora, S.S. Asgill, Joan O.C. (Miss)	India Sierra Leone	Surrey Nottingham	Biomechanics Organic Chemistry
*Asiedu-Gyampoh, Albert	Ghana	U.M.I.S.T.	Textile Design
Asselin, Jean Astruc, Marie M. (Miss)	Canada Mauritius	London London	Geology Mathematics
Azam, K.A.	Bangladesh	London	Inorganic Chemistry
Aziz, Saltana D. (Miss)	Bangladesh	Sheffield	Town & Regional Planning
Banda, W.M. Barrie, Andrew Basedow, D.J. Beckles, Ann L.E.	Rhodesia Australia Australia Trinidad &	London Oxford Oxford College of	Hydrogeology Law Human Biology Librarianship
(Miss)	Tobago	Librarianship, Wales	F
Befus, A.D. Begum, N.N. (Miss) Belisle, J.A. Bhattacharya, Abhijit	Canada Bangladesh Belize India	Glasgow Edinburgh Bristol Wales	Zoology Mycology Education Anaesthetics
Bhattacharjee, D.K.	Bangladesh	Leeds	Anatomy
Bhuiyan, L.B.	Bang la desh	London	Mathematical Physics
Billah, Md.M. Bowman, Diane M. (Miss)	Bangladesh Canada	Birmingham Newcastle-upon- Tyne	Biochemistry Computer Science
Braide, F.G.	Nigeria	Newcastle-upon- Tyne	Agricultural Engineering
Brown, Valerie G. (Miss)	New Zealand	Glasgow	Virology
Burggren, W.W. Burke, T.W.	Canada Australia	East Anglia Birmingham	Zoology Urban & Regional Studies
Cameron, W.H.	Canada	Cambridge	Applied Mathematics
*Carver, F.G.	Mauritius	National College of Food Technology, Weybridge	Food Technology
*Chakraborty, K.B.	Bangladesh	Aston	Physical Chemistry
Chan Yee Wing Chay Wai Chuon	Singapore	London	Oral Pathology
Chay Wai Chuen Chimbaira, M.S.	Singapore Rhodesia	Sussex Hull	Economics Social
Chirwa, Fides P. (Miss)	Malawi	Sussex	Administration Mathematics

Name	Country
Chizea, D.I. Chokotho, Norris	Nigeria Malawi
Choo Kian Koon,	Singapore
Steven *Choudhury, I. Md.	Bangladesh
Chowdhury, A.N. Choy Kwan Ming (Miss)	Bangladesh Hong Kong
Christian, T.J. Collings, Sandra (Miss)	Canada Australia
Colman, Frances E. (Miss)	Australia
Coulson Sheila D. (Miss)	Canada
Cox, D.I.	Guyana
Coye, R.S.	Belize
*Dadhich, K.S. Das, Tarunkanti Dattagupta, Rana Davey, M.K. De Silva, G.A. (Miss) Dhilwayo, K.D. Dore, M.H.I. Dubey, G.K. *Edjah, J.K. Efthymiou,	India India India Australia Sri Lanka Rhodesia Zambia India Ghana Cyprus
Michalakis *Eliezer, Jebakumar Elliot, R.M. *Essilfie, Thomas Evans, W.H. Eyers, J.S. *Falade, Segun Farewell, V.T. Farina, C.J.E.	Sri Lanka Canada Ghana Australia Australia Nigeria Canada Canada
Farthing, S.P. Ferguson, S.R. Firdaus, Shamim (Mrs.) Galarneau, Louise *Galizia, A.C. Ganesan, V.	Canada New Zealan Bangladesh Canada Malta India

nada w Zealand ngladesh

Newcastle-upon-Tyne London London Cambridge Cambridge Oxford London Birmingham London Dundee East Anglia Brunel Cambridge Liverpool London Oxford Bradford Strathclyde U.M.I.S.T. Southampton London Leeds London Oxford London London Manchester

Place of Tenure (University unless

otherwise stated)

London

East Anglia

Nottingham

Cambridge Liverpool Strathclyde

London Birmingham London

Mathematics Chemical Education Urban Renewal Architecture Geology Public Administration Law Biochemistry English Archaeology Educational Administration Educational Planning (Low Income Countries) Microbiology Economics Digital Systems Fluid Mechanics Veterinary and Clinical Studies African History Economics Electrical Engineering Economics Civil Engineering Plant Physiology Law English Econometrics Politics Bacteriology Statistics Liberal Studies in Science Physics Oceanography Psychology **Tropical Medicine** Nephrology Mechanical

Engineering

Subject

40

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Glover, D.D.	Bahamas	Glasgow	Desalination
Gokarn, R.P.	India	Newcastle-upon-	Technology Shipbuilding
Gupta, H.N.	India	Tyne U.M.I.S.T.	Mechanical Engineering
Gupta, P.N.	India	Loughborough	Electrical Engineering
Gupta, R.L.	India	Newcastle-upon- Tyne	Plastic Surgery
+Gupta, S.C.	India	Durham	Applied Physics & Electronics
Harvey, J.M. Harvey, P.B. Hasnain, Tara (Mrs.)	Australia Rhodesia India	Sussex York Oxford	Psychology English English
Heeralall, S. (Miss)	Mauritius	Leeds	Electrical Engineering
Hedge, S.N. Herath Banda, M.A.	India Sri Lanka	Reading Leeds	Animal Nutrition Electronics
Hill, B.H.W. Ho Ka Leung	Canada Hong Kong	London London	English Microwave
Holgate, R.W.	Australia	Manchester	Engineering Computer
Hopkins,Catherine M. (Miss)	Australia	East Anglia	Science Biogeography
Howlader, N.C.	Bangladesh	Manchester	Inorganic Chemistry
*Husain, Akhtar	Bangladesh	Birmingham	Applied Geophysics
Hussain, Nazia (Mrs.)	Bangladesh	London	Asian Area Studies
lacovides, A.M.	Cyprus	London	Chemical Engineering
Iftikhar-Ul-Awwal, A.Z.M.	Bangladesh	London	History of South Asia
Igben, M.S.	Nigeria	Nottingham	Agricultural Finance
Ilahi, Md.F.	Bangladesh	Bradford	Mechanical Engineering
Iroha, Edna(Mrs.) Islam, T.S.A. (Mrs.)(nee Talukder)	Nigeria Bangladesh	Glasgow Aberdeen	Paediatrics Physical Chemistry
Jacobs, F.K.S. Jain, Nirjhar (Miss)	St. Vincent India	London Manchester	Anaesthetics Social
Jarratt, J.D. Jayasuriya, D.S.	New Zealand Sri Lanka	Warwick Bristol	Anthropology Mathematics Surface Chemistry & Colloids

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Jenkin, Phyllis I.	Canada	Manchester	Liberal Studies
(nee Colvin)			in Science
Jimoh, T.A.A.	Nigeria	Leeds	English
Kadam, V.D	India	Aberdeen	Biochemistry
*Kadiri, A.U	Nigeria	Leeds	Physiology
Kalu, K.S.	Nigeria	Southampton	Electronics
Kapoor, A.K.	India India	Birmingham	Pathology
Kapur, Renu, (Miss)		Glasgow	Medicine
Karim, Zahurul Kaafan Janica J	Bangladesh Canada	Reading Sussex	Soil Science
Keefer, Janice L. (Mrs.)	Callaua	Jussex	English
Kennedy, P.D.	Canada	Edinburgh	History
Kothari, Kunal	India	Manchester	Cardiology
Kularatne, K.W.S.	Sri Lanka	Aston	Polymer
			Chemistry
*Kwakye, J.K.	Ghana	Strathclyde	Pharmaceutical Analysis
*Lahai, A.C.	Sierra Leone	London	Nematology
Lai Ching Lung	Hong Kong	Edinburgh	Medicine
Lai Yeuk-Lin,	Hong Kong	Brunel	Public
Linda (Miss)	11. 77	T 11 1	Administration
*Lam Fuei Kit	Hong Kong	Loughborough	Ultrasonic En sin a spin a
Latifa, G.A.	Bangladesh	Manchester	Engineering Zoology
Lau Wu Pui-Chee,	Hong Kong	Sheffield	Pathology
Sybil (Miss)		onennera	rathology
Law, Vivien A.	Canada	Cambridge	Classics
(Miss)		6	
Lee Kai Fat	Hong Kong	Leeds	Chinese
	•• ••		Linguistics
Lee Wai-Pik, Dora	Hong Kong	Oxford	Philosophy
(Miss)	Australia	Edin barre ab	
Leeman, H.I.	Sierra Leone	Edinburgh	Physics
Leigh, E.A.M. Leong Wing Kean	Malaysia	Wales London	Marine Biology
Leong wing Kean	Malaysia	London	Dental Public Health
Lepage, J.P.	Canada	Sheffield	History
Lessard, Marie	Canada	London	Town Planning
(Miss)			
Lewis, Pia N.	Rhodesia	Oxford	French
(Miss)			
Liburd, E.D.F.	St. Kitts Nevis	Lancaster	Systems
I and D D	T · · · 1 · 1 · 0		Engineering
Long, P.R.	Trinidad &	City of Leeds and	Physical
*Iongo I B	Tobago	Carnegie College	Education
*Longe, J.B. Louis Margot K	Nigeria Canada	Essex	Economics
Louis, Margot K. (Miss)	Callada	Oxford	English
Louis, W.P.	Dominica	Lancaster	Politics
Lowe, H.I.C.	Jamaica	Manchester	Pharmaceutical
· · · · · · ·	,		Chemistry
Luhanga, P.V.C.	Malawi	Southampton	Electronics
		-	

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
*Lyn, Gloria H. (Mrs.)	Jamaica	Hull	English Literature
MacPherson, J.C.	Canada	Cambridge	Law
McCann, P.R.	Australia	Edinburgh	Psychology
Mabud, S.A.	Bangladesh	Cambridge	Physics
Macwani, Muyoba	Zambia	Surrey	Medical Physics
Mahabir, M.R.R.	Trinidad &	Strathclyde	Pharmaceutical
	Tobago	Strutterjue	Analysis
Majumder, Md.S.I.	Bangladesh	Liverpool	Biochemistry
Makhubalo, John	Rhodesia		Analytical
Makilubalo, john	Ribdesia	Birmingham	
	India	C authornator	Chemistry
Mallik, A.K.	India	Southampton	Mechanical
Maadului Ahin II	Malawaia	Diamin la -	Engineering
Masduki, A. bin H.	Malaysia	Birmingham	Medicine
Matatamua, Ata	W. Samoa	Glasgow	Paediatrics
Matthews, Elena C.	Barbados	London	Archive
(Miss)			Administration
Matthews, T.I.	Rhodesia	London	History
Mazed, Md.A.	Bangladesh	Reading	Agricultural
			Engineering
Medaiyedu, J.A.O.	Nigeria	London	Entomology
Mellefont, D.J.	Australia	London	Chemical
			Engineering
*Minta, Akwasi	Ghana	Cambridge	Chemistry
*Mishra, Ganeswar	India	Kent	English
*Mkanganwi, K.G.	Rhodesia	York	Sociolinguistics
M'Kushi, J.P.	Rhodesia	Reading	Food Science
*Mokhtar bin Bidin	Malaysia	Newcastle-upon-	Engineering
		Tyne	Mathematics
Molnar, R.E.	Canada	London	Metallurgy
Moore, J.W.	Canada	Bath	Zoology
Morris, Catherine	New Zealand	Cambridge	Zoology
E_{\bullet} (Mrs.)		C	
Morrish, Jennifer	Canada	Oxford	English
J. (Miss)			0
*Mostafa, Md.G.	Bangladesh	Exeter	Economics
M'Shonga,	Rhodesia	Reading	Agricultural
Shakespeare		_	Botany
Mungutroy, E.H.L.	Mauritius	Surrey	Civil Engineering
*Munroe, M.M.	Guyana	Bradford	Electrical
	-		Engineering
Munthali, D.C.	Malawi	London	Entomology
Muqtada, M.	Bangladesh	Cambridge	Economics
Murarka, P.D.	India	U.M.I.S.T.	Mechanical
			Engineering
Murphy, T.A.	Australia	Lancaster	Economics
Muuthia, Festus	Kenya	Glasgow	Geography
Muzorewa, B.C.	Rhodesia	Leeds	Economics
Mvunga, Ednas M.	Zambia	London	Manpower Studies
(Mrs.)			
Mwangi, Richard	Kenya	Hull	Zoology
Nanda, N.K.	India	Southampton	Electronics
		-	

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Nandam, A.S.	Fiji Kanada	Edinburgh	Surgery
*Ndiritu, E.M.N.	Kenya Bengaldaab	Birmingham	Law Diant Day 1
*Newaz, Md.Ali Nirjar, R.S.	Bangaldesh India	Wales	Plant Breeding
Norris, Cecily A.	St. Vincent	Edinburgh London	Civil Engineering Education
(Miss)	ot. v meent	London	Education
Nyong, E.O.	Nigeria	Birmingham	Medicine
Obianyor, D.F.E.	Nigeria	Cambridge	Metallurgy
Okah-Avae, B.E.	Nigeria	U.M.I.Š.T.	Mechanical
	-		Engineering
Okeke, B.O.	Nigeria	London	Refrigeration &
		-1	_Air Conditioning
Okolo, Angela A.	Nigeria	Glasgow	Paediatrics
(Miss) *Okonia A U	Nicorio	Nottin -hom	A
*Okorie, A.U. *Okusanya, O.T.	Nigeria Nigeria	Nottingham	Animal Nutrition
Olamyan, J. A. O.	Nigeria	Lancaster Nottingham	Plant Ecology Environmental
Oramyun, J. A. C.	Migeria	Nottingham	Planning
Olorunfemi, A.	Nigeria	Birmingham	W. African
···· ··· ···· ···· ···· ···· ··· ··· ·		Dir marginam	History
Olukoya, O.A.T.	Nigeria	Manchester	Pharmaceutical
	-		Analysis
O'Meara, J.P.	Canada	East Anglia	English
Opoku, Y.B.	Ghana	Reading	Construction
Osherra D.I.	D 1 - 1 - 1		Management
Osborne, P.L.	Rhodesia	East Anglia	Hydrobiology
*Osotimehin, Babatunde	Nigeria	Birmingham	Endocrinology
Otuyemi, Syella O.	Nigeria	London	Pharmaceutical
(Mrs.)	Migeria	London	Technology
*Oyeleye, D.A.	Nigeria	London	Economic
			Geography
Padmore, K.E.	Barbados	London	Statistics
Palumbo, J.A.	Canada	Oxford	Philosophy
Pant, A.K.	India	Sussex	Electrical
		_	Engineering
Peake, M.J.	Australia	Essex	Applied
Domachi I D	Sierra Leone	T a a d a	Mathematics
Pemagbi, J.R. Penman, C.B.	Australia	Leeds London	Linguistics
Pezarro, M.T.	Canada	Cambridge	Law Computer
	Cunudu	Cumbi lage	Science
*Pillai,Gunasagaran	Fiji	London	Education
Polydore, Kay M.	Dominica	Leeds	Education
(Mrs.)			
*Popoola, J.O.	Nigeria	Stirling	Mathematics
+Puntambekar, P.N.	India	London	Physics
+Puri, H.S.J.S.	India	Bath	Pharmacognosy
Rabbani, K.S.E.	Bangladesh	Southampton	Electronics
Rafee, N.M. Raghavendra, N.	Malaysia India	Bath	Statistics
Raghunathan, T.S.	India	Leeds Birmingham	Civil Engineering
		Birmingham	Chemical Engineering
			Eugmeet mg

Name	Country
Rahman, A.K.N.A. Rahman, Md. F. *Ramarine, Tyran *Raseroka, B.H. Rehman, Md. A.	Bangladesh Bangladesh Guyana Botswana Bangladesh
Reza, Hossain Roberts, F.S.	Bangladesh Jamaica
Rooney, J.C. Sadeque, S.Z. Saha, S.K. Salam, Md.A.	Australia Bangladesh India Bangladesh
Sammut, Michael Sarma, Reeti (Miss) Scerri, A.E.	Malta India Malta
Schembri, Joseph Sene, A.R. Sethi, V.K. *Shafiee, S.H.	Malta Gibraltar Singapore Malaysia
Shahjahan, Md.	Bangladesh
Shakespeare, D.A. *Shankar P.A. Shava, F.H. Shirley, I.M.	Jamaica India Rhodesia Rhodesia
*Shukla, N.D. Sibanda, M.J.M.	India Rhodesia
Singh, Bhupal	India
Singh, Gyanendra	India
Singh, Lalji	India
Singh, N.N.P. Singh, O.P. *Singh, R.N. Sit Fung Shuen, Victor	India India India Hong Kong
Skinner, D.H. Snaith, G.P. Smith, E.I.M. Smith, Mere B. (Mrs.)	Canada Canada Barbados Fiji
Sofoluwe, A.B.	Nigeria

Place of Tenure (University unless Subject otherwise stated) Brunel U.M.I.S.T. Sussex Sussex Birmingham Leeds Strathclyde London Leeds U.M.I.S.T. London Bristol Wye College London London London Glasgow Sussex School of Pharmacy, London Edinburgh Reading London Nottingham London Birmingham Newcastle-upon-Tyne Reading Edinburgh London U.M.I.S.T. Reading London Sussex Cambridge Edinburgh Inns of Court Law School Law (London)

Chemistry Electronics History Biology Info. & Systems Engineering Physiology Public Health Engineering Social Medicine Economics Town Planning Organic Chemistry Chemistry Biochemistry Engineering Hydrology Civil Engineering Spanish Radiotherapy Control Engineering Pharmaceutics Surgery Dairy Science Nematology Organic Chemistry Statistics W.African History Agricultural Engineering Agricultural Engineering Molecular Biology History Textile Chemistry Applied Optics Geography History French Surgery

Numerical Analysis

Edinburgh

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Spurling, Florence D. (Mrs.)	Australia	Nottingham	English
Sridharan, Srinivasan	India	Southampton	Civil Engineering
Statham, Janet M. (Miss)	New Zealand	Reading	Food Science
Stephens, C.D.	Canada	London	Archaeology
Subba Rao, V.N. Sullivan, G.R.	India Canada	U.M.I.S.T. London	Control Systems Chemical Engineering
Swadden, R.H.	Canada	London	Law
Swami, M.P.	India	St. Andrews	Chemistry
Szwarc, Josef	Australia	Sussex	International Relations
Talukdar, Md. Y.	Bangladesh	City University	Management Accounting
Tan Cheong Huat, Encik	Malaysia	Hull	Zoology
Tan Chue Tin, Patrick	Singapore	London	Psychiatry
*Tham Sock Ying (Miss)	Malaysia	London	Pharmacy
Thomas, Jean A. (Miss)	Nigeria	Oxford	Pathology
*Ti Soi Sang	Malaysia	East Anglia	Chemistry
Tsokkos, K.A.	Cyprus	Birmingham	Mathematics
Uddin, M.S.	Bangladesh	U.M.I.S.T.	Chemical Engineering
Vaspayee, Shrikant	India	Birmingham	Mechanical Engineering
Vasudevan, Padma (Mrs.)	India	Manchester	Chemical Physics
Verma, S.V.S.	India	Edinburgh	Poultry Science
Wali, J.P.	India	Leeds	Bone Disorders
Warambwa, B.F.M.		Manchester	Chemistry
*Warren, Annette J. (Miss)	Guyana	Leeds	Commonwealth Literature
Warwick, Suzanne I. (Miss)	Canada	Cambridge	Taxonomy
Weerasooriya, T.	Sri Lanka	Cambridge	Control Engineering
Welwood, D.E.	Canada	Cambridge	Political Economy
White, J.D.	Australia	Cambridge	Civil Engineering
Whitelaw, Emma (Miss)	Australia	Oxford	Zoology
Whitwell, A.C.	Rhodesia	London	Zoology
Widdicombe, P.J.	Canada	Oxford	History
Wilkins, P.A.	Australia	Southampton	Engineering
Willey, H.B.	New Zealand	Cambridge	Architecture
Williams, J.L.	Australia	London	Acoustic

46

Engineering

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Wright, C.A.M.	Sierra Leone	Aston	Education and Engineering
Yadava, G.L.P. Young, S.M. *Yusef, M.A. Zavery, Z.G.	India Canada Nigeria Kenya	London Manchester Dundee Strathclyde	Urban Studies Philosophy Mathematics Forensic Science

HONG KONG

Isabirye, D.A.	Uganda	Hong Kong	Inorganic Chemistry
Karunasena, W.G.	Sri Lanka	Hong Kong	Mechanical Engineering
Teo Choo How	Singapore	The Chinese University of Hong Kong	Chinese Language

CANADA

Abdul-Kareem,	Nigeria	Waterloo	Chemical
H.K. Afolabi, M.O.	Nigeria	Waterloo	Engineering Mathematics
Alam, M.	Bangladesh	U.B.C.	Economics
Allotey, J. (Dr.)	Ghana	McGill	Physiology
Anandajayaskeram,	Sri Lanka	Guelph	Agricultural
P.	STT Lanka	Guerpii	Economics
Applebe, W.	Australia	U.B.C.	Computer
Appiebe, w.	nustrana	$0 \bullet D \bullet C \bullet$	Science
Battacharya, A.	India	McGill	Agricultural
Battacharya, n.	maia	MCGIII	Engineering
Binns, R.G.	United Kingdom	U.B.C.	English Literature
Boyd, B.D.	New Zealand	Toronto	English
Boyd, D.C.	United Kingdom	$U_{\bullet}B_{\bullet}C_{\bullet}$	Science of
Boya, D.C.	onnea Kingdom	$0 \cdot D \cdot C \cdot$	Electronics
Brown, Roger	Bahamas	Toronto	Educational
Brown, Roger	Danamas	10101110	Administration
Chandra, H. (Miss)	India	McMaster	Metallurgy
Chinyoka, S.V.T.	Zambia	Ottowa	Economics
Chow, K.C.	Singapore		
Chow, R.C.	Sligapore	U.B.C.	Business Administration
Dash, A.	India	Queen's	Psychology
Driver, J.C.	United Kingdom Australia	Calgary Western	Archaeology
Dwyer, Larry	Ghana		Philsophy
Dzakpasu, A.	Gilalla	U.B.C.	Chemistry
(Miss)	Tradia	<u>One and I a</u>	
Gambhir, M.	India	Queen's	Structural
Chandi M	India	TT N D	Engineering
Ghandi, M. Chosh A K	India	$U_{\bullet}N_{\bullet}B_{\bullet}$	Geochemistry
Ghosh, A.K.	mula	N.S.T.C.	Metallurgical Engineering
			Engmeering

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Goldschlager, L.	Australia	Toronto	Computer
Gordon, J.	Br.Virgin Is.	Western	Science Business Administration
Green, A. Groenwold, N. Gunapala, N-K	Australia Australia Sr i Lanka	Toronto Western York	Geology Economics Public Administration
Gupta, J.	India	Waterloo	Civil Engineering
Hoggart, Keith	United Kingdom	U.B.C.	English Literature
lp, D.F. Isana, M.S.	Hong Kong Papua New Guinea	U.B.C. Toronto	Sociology Law
Isaac, Keith Jackson, William Jong, C.K.	St. Lucia United Kingdom Singapore	McGill Queen's U.B.C.	Economics Mathematics Business Administration
Kandiah, P.	Malaysia	U. N. B.	Electrical Engineering
Kanagaratnam, M (Miss)	Sri Lanka	Ottawa	Chemistry
Kalicharan, N.	Trinidad	U.B.C.	Computer Science
Keshava, Murthy, T.L.	India	Waterloo	Civil Engineering
Kityo, Tom	Uganda	McMaster	Business Administration
Kula, A.R. (Miss)	Papua New Guinea	Simon Fraser	English
Lee, Y.N.	Singapore	Saskatchewan	Mechanical Engineering
Lim Liat	Singapore	Alberta	Industrial
Magnus, M.T. (Miss)	Jamaica	Simon Fraser	Engineering Linguistics
Mahon, R.C. Mahung, S.	Jamaica Belize	Guelph Toronto	Zoology Curriculum Development
Manetto, L. Marston, C.J. (Miss)	Gibraltar Jamaica	Alberta Carleton	Mathematics Journalism
McDonell, K.J.	Australia	Alberta	Computer Science
Merz, B. (Miss) Micallef, P.	United Kingdom Malta	Western Toronto	Geophysics Electrical
Mohamed, N.	Guyana	Queen's	Engineering Civil
Mugisha, A.	Uganda	McGill	Engineering Mechanical Engineering

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Mwanag'onze, E.H.	Zambia	Manitoba	Economical Geology
Mwangi, P.F.N.	Kenya	McMaster	Industrial
Naik, D.	Zambia	Guelph	Economics Plant Pathology
Naylor, D.A. Ng Pak Leung, J. (Miss)	United Kingdom Mauritius	Calgary Concordia	Physics Economics
Ngwira, T.	Malawi	U.B.C.	Agricultural Biochemistry
Nyumbu, I.L.	Zambia	U.B.C.	Hydraulic Engineering
Ochola, J.P. (Miss)	Kenya	U.B.C.	Business Administration
Okoye, J.C. Onayinka, O. Pathirana, K. Pemberton, L. (Miss)	Nigeria Nigeria Sri Lanka United Kingdom	Toronto Alberta McGill Waterloo	Economics Microbiology Animal Science French
Pilgrim, H.M. Ramaiah, Al	United Kingdom Malaysia	U.B.C. Alberta	Russian Studies Educational
Rahim, C.	Bangladesh	Carleton	Administration Electrical Engineering
Richards, H.(Mrs)	Antigua	Ryerson	Engineering Radio &
Samuels, G.E.	Sierra Leone	Ottawa	Television Arts Educational
Sareen, B.K.	India	McMaster	Administration Mechanical Engineering
Singh, Nirmal	Malaysia	McGill	Business Administration
Singh, V.R.	India	Toronto	Biomedical
Stow, D.A.V. Struthers, A.A. Taylor, J. (Miss)	United Kingdom United Kingdom United Kingdom	Dalhousie York Victoria	Engineering Marine Biology Law English
Toohey, P. Tindimabona	Australia Uganda	Toronto Alberta	Literature Medieval Studies Chemistry
Tiwari, A.P.	India	U.B.C.	Extension
Uhr, John	Australia	Toronto	Education Political
Vowles, J.	New Zealand	U.B.C.	Science Political
Wilkinson, H (Miss)	United Kingdom	Toronto	Science Classics
Williams, S. (Miss)	United Kingdom	McGill	English Literature

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Wilson, J.D. Wong, Kam-Yeung Wong, Kim-Fah	New Zealand Hong Kong Malaysia	Toronto U.B.C. U.B.C.	English Marine Ecology Physical Chemistry
Wright, D.G. Wu, S.S. Yankson, E. Yeatman, E. (Miss)	New Zealand Hong Kong Ghana Australia	Toronto U.B.C. McGill Guelph	English Marine Ecology Urban Planning Physiological Ecology

INDIA

Abrefah, P.K. Allken, Velsamy Amur, Abdullah A.	Ghana Mauritius Tanzania	Delhi Punjab,Chandigarh Medical College, Raipur	Social Work Education Medicine
Fernandopulle, M.S.S.	Sri Lanka	Indian Institute of Mass Communicati New Delhi	Journalism on
Gleeson,Catherine E. (Miss)	Australia	Visva Bharati Santiniketan	Indian History
Hall, Peter D.	Canada	Utkal	Anthropology
Hurry, Suresh D.	Mauritius	I.I.T. Delhi	Electrical Engineering
Kaur, Narinder (M iss)	Malaysia	Medical College Trivandrum	Medicine
Kaur, Rabinder Jeet (Miss)	Malaysia	Medical College Bangalore	Medicine
Konis, Konstandious	Cyprus	G.B. Pant Polytechnic Delhi	Mechanical Engineering
Mackenzie, S.P.M.	Britain	Visva Bharati Santiniketan	Buddhism
Marchant, P.B.	Britain	Roorkee	Architecture
Mueenuden, U.H.H. (Miss)	Sri Lanka	Madras	Sociology
Nagappan, S.	Malaysia	Medical College Trivandrum	Medicine
Notari, Nehemiah	Kenya	Delhi	History
Ngowi, Jesse S.	Tanzania	Government Polytechnic Kanpur	Electronics
Panpiah, S.A.	Mauritius	Forest Research Institute and College Dehra Dur	Forestry
Puchooa, Daneelall	Mauritius	Baroda	Education
Rawana, R.P.	Guyana	Medical College	Medicine
	Guy and	Burla	medicille
Singh, Inderjeet	Malaysia	Medical College Burla	Medicine
Singh, Prem	Malaysia	Medical College Raipur	Medicine

Name	Country	Place of Tenure (University unless otherwise stated)	Subject
Subramaniam	Malaysia	Medical College Trivandrum	Medicine
Vcitokiyaki, I.T.	Fiji	Jalpaiguri Government Engineering College	Mechanical Engineering
Yeboah, B.K.	Ghana	Delhi	Social Work

NEW ZEALAND

Birss, Viola I. (Miss)	Canada	Auckland	Chemistry
Georghiou,Demetra (Miss)	Cyprus	Massey	Natural Sciences
Gillie, R.D. Gunn, J. Midha, R.K. Miller, R.A. Morarji, H.L. Nur Nabi, M. Salim, M.A. Slater, John	Canada Britain India Jamaica Fiji Bangladesh Bangladesh Britain	Canterbury Auckland Victoria Victoria Canterbury Lincoln Canterbury Auckland	Geography Geography Geophysics Mathematics Engineering Entomology Engineering Geography

NIGERIA

Trinidad/Tobago Kenya	Ibadan Lagos	Drama Business Administration
Trinidad/Tobago	Ibadan	African Literature
Britain	Ife	Economics
Canada		Zoology
Kenva		History
5		Nutrition
Ghana	lfe	English
Sierra Leone	Ibadan	Chemistry
Jamaica	Lagos	Education
Tanzania	Ibadan	Forestry
	Kenya Trinidad/Tobago Britain Canada Kenya Jamaica Ghana Sierra Leone Jamaica	KenyaLagosTrinidad/TobagoIbadanBritainIfeCanadaA. B. U.KenyaIbadanJamaicaIbadanGhanaIfeSierra LeoneIbadanJamaicaIbadanLagos

* Denotes a Commonwealth Academic Staff Scholar.

+ Denotes a Scholar previously omitted in error.

APPENDIX IV

Commonwealth Visiting Fellowships and other senior awards under the Plan

Since 1960 five countries (six including the former Federation of Rhodesia and Nyasaland) have instituted Fellowships or other senior awards under the Plan. Some of these countries have also established awards for short-term visits by senior educationists either as part of their contribution to the various schemes for Commonwealth educational co-operation or in connection with some other educational programme. Some of this nature are not considered by the country concerned as coming under the Plan and have therefore been excluded from this Report.

1. LIST OF FELLOWSHIPS, THEIR EMOLUMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF AWARD

The following is a statement of the Fellowships and other senior awards available under the Plan. Apart from the Commonwealth Senior Medical Fellowships, Medical Fellowships and Academic Staff Fellowships these awards are not open to direct application by prospective candidates and are normally made by direct invitation from the awarding country to the person concerned.

AUSTRALIA

Visiting Professorships

- Description: The awards will enable professors from other Commonwealth countries to be attached to Australian Universities for teaching and research. Five Visiting Professorships are now available each year.
- Duration: Normally one academic year.
- Tenure: Normally at one Australian University.
- Value: A grant equal to a first class return air fare from the Professor's home country to Australia. Other costs are met by the University.

Australian Visiting Fellowships

Description: Persons eminent in various fields of education, may be invited to accept Australian Visiting Fellowships. The purpose of inviting the Fellows is to enable them to discuss with senior university personnel and educationists subjects of mutual interest and to see something of recent Australian developments in their fields.

Duration: Up to three months.

Value: Includes first-class return air fare between the Fellow's own country and Australia, cost of travel within Australia and a maintenance allowance for the period spent in Australia.

BRITAIN

Commonwealth Visiting Professorships

- Description: These awards are intended for senior scholars of established reputation and achievement, to enable them to visit Britain for research or original work. Five are normally available each year.
- Duration: Normally from October for periods of up to one year. It is not intended to offer awards for periods of only a few weeks.

Tenure: Normally at a single British university, college or other institution, although in special circumstances this condition may be waived.

Value: Normal emoluments include payment of fares at tourist air rate or equivalent, and a maintenance allowance. Emoluments are fixed so as to assure a Professor of a total income in Britain comparable to that of a professor in like circumstances in a university in Britain. They are normally not subject to income tax in Britain.

Commonwealth Senior Medical Fellowships

Description: These awards are intended for full professorial heads of departments of some considerable seniority primarily to enable them to acquaint themselves at first hand with the facilities available in Britain for the intensive training of their junior staff who have already obtained their higher degrees or professional qualifications. Up to 30 awards are available each year.

Duration: They are held for three months and are not renewable.

- Tenure: Normally at a single British university, medical school or other institution for a programme arranged by the Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom in consultation with the postgraduate medical dean of that institution to meet the requirements of the Senior Medical Fellow.
- Value: Fares to Britain and return on the expiry of the Fellowship, plus a personal maintenance allowance at a rate of £10 per day. Emoluments are not subject to income tax in Britain.
- Selection Procedure: Candidates must obtain nomination to the Commission either from a university or medical school in Britain (usually through the postgraduate medical dean) or from the Commonwealth Scholarship Agency in the candidate's own country.

Commonwealth Medical Fellowships

Description: These awards are primarily intended for clinical medical and dental teachers who have already obtained their postgraduate degrees and qualifications, but who require a programme of study in depth to be planned for them to enhance their experience. Medically qualified teachers of the basic medical sciences, research workers in medicine and dentistry and medical administrators are also eligible. Non-medically qualified teachers engaged wholly or chiefly in teaching medical students in departments of medical schools can also be considered. Up to 90 awards are available each year.

Duration: They are held for twelve months and are not renewable.

Tenure: Normally at a single British university, medical school or other institution under the guidance of the postgraduate medical dean, for a programme of study devised by the Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom in consultation with the dean to meet the Fellow's needs.

Value: The Fellowship emoluments (which are not subject to British income tax) include:

- (a) personal maintenance allowance at the rate of £160 per month;
- (b) approved air fare to Britain and return on expiry of the Fellowship (the cost of journeys made before receipt of awards will not normally be reimbursed, nor can fares be paid for a Fellow's dependants);
- (c) approved laboratory fees (when appropriate);
- (d) a grant for books and apparatus of £55 per year;
- (e) a grant for expenses of approved travel within Britain of up to £40 per year;
- (f) an initial clothing grant of £65 for such Fellows coming from tropical countries as are recommended to receive it;
- (g) for male Fellows accompanied by their wives, a marriage allowance at the rate of £44 per month, and allowances at the rate of £9, £7 and £5 per month respectively for the first, second and third of their children under the age of 16 who are with them in Britain. A marriage allowance will not be payable in respect of a wife who holds an award herself or who is in paid employment. A woman Fellow accompanied by her husband is not eligible for a marriage allowance, but if she is a widow or divorced and is legally responsible for her children she is eligible for children's allowance if they accompany her.

Selection Procedure: Candidates must obtain nomination to the Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom from one of the following sources:

- (a) a university or medical school in Britain (usually through the postgraduate medical dean);
- (b) a candidate's own university or medical school overseas (through the principal or dean); or
- (c) the Commonwealth Scholarship agency in a candidate's own country.

Commonwealth Academic Staff Fellowships

Description: These awards, which are for post-doctoral study in any academic discipline other than medicine or surgery, are designed to help universities and comparable institutions in the developing countries of the Commonwealth to enhance the experience of their locally born staff. The awards are not intended for study for higher degrees.

Duration: Normally for the duration of one academic year in the United Kingdom.

Tenure: Normally at a single British university or comparable institution for a programme of study or training devised by the Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom to relate closely to the Fellow's work in his own university.

Value: The Fellowship emoluments (which are not subject to British Income Tax) include:-

- (a) personal maintenance allowance at the rate of $\pounds155$ per month;
- (b) fares to Britain and return on the expiry of the Fellowship (the cost of journeys made before receipt of awards will not normally be reimbursed, nor will fares be paid for a Fellow's dependants);
- (c) approved laboratory fees (where appropriate);
- (d) a grant for books and apparatus of £55 per year;
- (e) a grant for expenses of approved travel within Britain of up to £40 per year;
- (f) an initial clothing grant of £65 for such Fellows coming from tropical countries as are recommended to receive it;
- (g) on certain conditions for male Fellows accompanied by their wives, a marriage allowance at the rate of \pounds 4 per month, and allowances at the rate of \pounds 9, \pounds 7 and \pounds 5 per month respectively for the first, second and third of their children under the age of 16 who are with them in Britain.

A marriage allowance will not be payable in respect of a wife who holds any scholarship herself or who is in paid employment.

Selection Procedure: Candidates must obtain nominations to the Commonwealth Scholarship Commission in the United Kingdom from one of the following authorities:-

- (a) the Vice-Chancellor of the University, on whose permanent staff he serves in his own country;
- (b) the Vice-Chancellor of a British university, usually one which has an official link with the university in the candidate's own country on whose permanent staff he serves;

- (c) the Inter-University Council for Higher Education Overseas;
- (d) the Commonwealth Scholarship Agency in his own country.

In addition, the Commission will be willing to consider nominations originating from the head of an autonomous non-university institution in developing Commonwealth countries.

CANADA

Under the Plan, Canada grants awards known as Canadian Fellowships, of which there are two categories: Canadian Research Fellowships; and Canadian Visiting Fellowships.

Commonwealth Research Fellowships

Description: Canadian Research Fellowships are intended to bring to Canada from Universities and Research Centres of other countries of the Commonwealth, scholars of established reputation whose presence in Canadian universities is expected to be of benefit to themselves and to their countries as well as to their Canadian hosts. A Fellow will be free to do his own study and research and to engage in other activities for the purpose of building up his contacts with his Canadian colleagues during his stay in Canada. He will normally be attached to a single university during the period of his Fellowship, although his programme might include short visits to other institutions.

Duration: Normally one academic year, although consideration will be given to programmes covering an academic term.

Value: A Fellow will be provided with economy air transportation to and from Canada, and a maintenance allowance of \$\$1,000 per month. He will also be provided with economy air transportation to and from Canada for his wife and dependent children, provided they are with him for a minimum of six months. The Fellowship also covers the Fellow's transportation costs for authorized travel in Canada and approved medical and hospitalization services for the Fellow and any dependants in Canada. A total of two weeks' travel outside Canada may be allowed subject to permission being granted by the Committee; travel expenses will not be paid but the allowance of \$\$1,000 a month will be continued during travel so authorized.

Commonwealth Visiting Fellowships

Description: Canadian Visiting Fellowships are intended to bring to Canada from other countries of the Commonwealth persons who are prominent in various fields of education, including universities, colleges, primary and secondary schools and technical institutions. A Visiting Fellow will have the opportunity to discuss educational matters with his Canadian colleagues, to advise and be advised on techniques and problems associated with his particular educational interest. It is intended that his visit to Canada will be of benefit to himself and to his country as well as to his hosts. His programme, will be flexible but he will remain attached to one particular institution or agency during his stay in Canada. Duration: Normally from two to four months, although consideration will be given to programmes up to a maximum of six months. The Fellow will be required to remain at the sponsoring institution or agency for a minimum of one month of the tenure of the award.

Value: A fellow will be provided with economy air transportation for his travel to and from Canada, authorized transportation costs within Canada, and an expense allowance of \$30 per day for food, lodging and incidental expenses, as well as approved medical and hospitalization services while in Canada. As the purpose of the Plan is to encourage inter-Commonwealth exchanges it is expected that a Visiting Fellow will spend his time in Canada during the period of his award.

INDIA

Short-term visits by Senior Educationists

Description: The Government of India awards these Senior Visiting Fellowships for visits by Senior Educationists (Professors, Senior Administrators or Senior Headmasters) to enable them to study and observe in India any educational field of their choice.

Duration: These Fellowships are awarded for a period of not more than three months.

Value: Return tourist-class air passage. Maintenance allowance of Rs.100 per day for Senior Professors and Administrators, and Rs.75 per day for Senior Headmasters. In cases where accommodation is provided by a university or other institution, the allowances are Rs.75 and Rs.60 respectively; these include local travel costs. Costs of travel in India by bus or first class rail (or by air if the distance to be travelled exceeds 750 miles). Free medical and hospital facilities.

NEW ZEALAND

Prestige Fellowships

Description: The awards are intended to bring to New Zealand each year a small number of scholars of eminence to give lectures and to hold discussions with university staff and senior students. The opportunity is also given to Fellows to undertake some research of their own and to foster their own academic interests by visits to appropriate institutions in New Zealand.

Duration: From six weeks to two months approximately.

- Tenure: Fellows normally visit each university for an appropriate period, normally not exceeding a fortnight, but longer visits to particular universities may be arranged.
- Value: First-class return air fare, internal travel and \$NZ30 per day.

Administrative Fellowships

Description: Available for award to promising administrators from, say, 25 to 45 years of age who would benefit from study or enquiry in New Zealand and who are expected to make substantial contributions in their own countries - the awards to be for studying administration in Government Departments or universities.

Duration: Up to three months.

Value: Tourist-class air fare; cost of travel in New Zealand; maintenance grant of \$NZ20 per day.

Awards will be initiated by members of the New Zealand Commonwealth Scholarships and Fellowships Committee and will be by invitation only.

REGISTER OF FELLOWS WHO HAVE TAKEN UP AWARDS DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REPORT 2.

	Name	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
AUS	TRALIA		
Visit	ing Professorships		
	Professor M. Alam Director, Centre for Urban Research, Osmania University, Hyderabad.	India	Urban Studies at Macquarie University.
	Professor D. Dowson Professor of Engineering Fluid Mechanics, and Director of the Institute of Tribology, University of Leeds.	United Kingdom	Engineering Fluid Mechanics at the University of New South Wales.
	Professor S. Ullmann Professor of Romance Languages, Oxford.	United Kingdom	Modern Languages at the Australian National University.
Visit	ing Fellowships		
	Mr. D. Fiske Chief Education Officer, Manchester County Borough	United Kingdom 1.	Visited a wide selection of educational institutions; participated in discussions and seminars with Senior Government personnel, and with members of Commissions, Boards and teacher organisations at State and national levels.
	Professor R.M. Kenedi Professor and Head of Bioengineering, University of Strathclyde, Glasgow.	United Kingdom	Visited hospitals in major centres, Engineering, Dentistry, Medicine, Surgery and Health Departments in universities, and research centres; participated in discussions, lectures, seminars on bioengineering and associated topics.

Name	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
Mr. A. MacLennan Principal, College of Education (Technical) Huddersfield,	United Kingdom	Visited technical institutions and state and Australian Government Departments, participated in discussions on technical education, educational administration teacher education, and adult and extension training. Attended the Annual Conference of the Australian Association for Adult Education.
Visiting Consultants		
Mr. H.G. MacIntosh	United	Participated in seminars and

L	Mr. H.G. MacIntosh Secretary of the Southern Regional Examinations Board for the Certificate of Secondary Education, Southampton.	United Kingdom	Participated in seminars and discussions with education and examining authorities in government departments, schools and tertiary institu- tions on student assessment, evaluation and tertiary selection procedures.
---	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BRITAIN

Commonwealth Visiting Professors

Professor J.M. Bennett Professor of Electronic Computing, University of Sydney.	Australia	Tenable at the University of London. To advise on the design and operation of advanced networks of computer systems and optimisation techniques and to make use of the University of London Computer Centre for further research into optimisation.
Professor F.J.R. Hird Head of School of Biochemistry University of Melbourne.	Australia	Tenable at the University of St. Andrews. To deliver special lectures and supervise two senior honours students in their research, and to carry out his own research into the evolution of the liver.

Name	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
Professor W.V. MacFarlane Professor of Animal Physiology, University of Adelaide.	Australia	Tenable at the University of Reading. To teach students of Physiology and Biochemistry, Zoology and Agriculgure, and to participate in climatic studies on sheep and goats, advising particularly on the applica- tion of the isotope. To further his interest in ethology and sociology.
Professor A.G. McLellan Professor of Physics and Head of Department, University of Canterbury, Christchurch.	New Zealand	Tenable at the University of Hull. To participate in the experimental work in the Physics Department, and particularly to carry out research into the potentiali- ties of educational technology.
Professor C.N.R. Rao Senior Professor of Chemistry and Head of the Educational Development Centre, Indian Institute of Technology, Kanpur.	India	Tenable at the University of Oxford. To carry out research into solid state chemistry, lecture on spectroscopy and to write on thermodynamics, kinetics, statistical mechanics, soft mode theories, structural aspects and properties of materials (changing at transitions).
Professor R.W. Wellwood Professor of Forestry, University of British Columbia.	Canada	Tenable at the University College of North Wales, Bangor. To give courses on the timber industry in North America and the development of the forest industry in the tropics, and to take part in the research being under- taken by the University.

COMMONWEALTH SENIOR MEDICAL FELLOWS

Name	Country	Primary Centre of Study
Dr. L.K. Bhutani Associate Professor and Head of Department of Dermata- Venereology, A.I.I.M.S.	India	Edinburgh

Name	Country	Primary Centre of Study
Dr. B.M.L. Kapur Associate Professor of Surgery A.I.I.M.S.	India ,	Westminister Medical School, London
Dr. S.A. Cabraal Senior Neurosurgeon, General Hospital, Colombo.	Sri Lanka	Brook General Hospital, Woolwich, London
Professor Kenneth Cox Professor of Surgery, University of New South Wales.	Australia	St. Mary's Hospital Medical School, London
Dr. P.C. Dandiya Professor of Pharmacology, S.M.S. Medical College, Jaipur.	India	University College, London
Dr. Pritam Das Dean and Principal, M.L.N. Medical College, Allahabad.	India	University College, London
Dr. D.V. Datta Head of Division of Hepatic Diseases, Postgraduate Institute of Medical Education and Resea Chandigarh.		Royal Free Hospital School of Medicine, London
Professor H.V.J. Fernando Professor of Forensic Medicine University of Sri Lanka, Colombo.	Sri Lanka ,	St. George's Hospital Medical School, London
Professor S.M. Singh Head of Department of Urology, A.I.I.M.S.	India	Newcastle upon Tyne
Dr. I.P. Sukumar Professor of Cardiology, Christian Medical College, Vellore.	India	Newcastle upon Tyne

COMMONWEALTH MEDICAL FELLOWS

Name/University where employed	Country	Subject of Study	<u>Place of Study</u>
Anantharaju, M.S. Karnatak	India	Paediatric Surgery	London
Arora, T.S. Rajasthan	India	Cardiovascular Su rg ery	B r imingham
Baldwa, V.S. Rajasthan	India	Respiratory Diseases	Edinburgh
Baveja, R.K. (Miss) Allahabad	India	Obstetrics	Oxford
Chandra, Vinod Osmania	India	Gastroenterology	Glasgow
Chopra, Prem (Miss) A.I.I.M.S.	India	Cardiac Pathology	London
Das, B.S. Utkal	India	Neurosurgery	Edinburgh
Das, Sarala (Mrs.) Utkal	India	Neuropathology	Newcastle upon Tyne
Davies, D.J. Monash	Australia	Experimental Pathology	Birmingham
Ene, E.F. Lagos	Nige ri a	Anaesthetics	Liverpool
Gambhir, S.S. Banaras Hindu	India	Cardiovascular Pharmacology	London
Gupta, S.P. A.I.I.M.S.	India	Respiratory Disease	Edinburgh
Harneja, N.K. Rajasthan	India	Forensic Medicine	Bristol
Hazra, D.K. Agra	India	Nuclear Medicine	London
Jain, M.R. Rajasthan	India	Ophthalmology	B r istol
Kishan, A.G. Osmania	India	Nephrology	Manchester
Kumar, Sant Aligarh Muslim	India	Cardiology	Bi r mingham

<u>Name/University</u> where employed	Country	Subject of Study	Place of Study
Mishra, V.K.J. Bombay	India	Cardioradiology	London
Mohapatra, M.K. Utkal	India	Orthopaedics	London
Murti, Prema (Mrs.) Bombay	India	Pathology	London
Naidu, V.B.S. Osmania	India	Gastroenterology	Birmingham
Nayak, M.N. Mysore	India	Plastic Surgery	Edinburgh/ London
Pande, J.N. A.I.I.M.S.	India	Respiratory Physiology	London
Pandya, S.K. Bombay	India	Neurology	London
Parija, Chiraranjan Utkal	India	Nuclear Medicine	Liverpool
Prabhu, S.R. Mysore	India	Oral Pathology	London
Rao, J.J. Osmania	India	Gastroenterology	Manchester
Reddy, M.S. (Mrs.) Osmania	India	Gynaecology	London
Seervai, M.H. (Miss) Bombay	India	Paediatrics	London
Sen, Dipak Calcutta	India	Medical Microbiology	Bi rm ingham
Shah, D.S. Baroda	India	Pharmacology	Manchester
Siddiqui, H.H. A.I.I.M.S.	India	Pharmacology	Glasgow
Singh, Gurmail Guru Nanak	India	Paediatric Surgery	Sheffield
Singh, H.N. Banaras Hindu	India	Cardiovascular Surgery	London
Sinha, Sankar Nath North Bengal	India	Urology	Bristol/London

<u>Name/University</u> where employed	Country	Subject of Study	Place of Study
Sinha, Sri Narain Aligarh Muslim	India	Epidemiology	London
Smith, A.L. Melbourne	Australia	Liver Disease	London
Smith, M.G. Otago	New Zealand	Biochemistry	Glasgow
Smith, R.B.W. Otago	New Zealand	Diabetes Mellitus	London
Soundararajan, Palaniappan Madras	India	O r thopaedics	Edinburgh
Srivastava, P.K. Banaras Hindu	India	Nephrology	Leeds
Sunder, G. Sham Osmania	India	Urology	Liverpool
Tandon, Maya (Mrs.) Rajasthan	India	Paediatric Anaesthetics	Liverpool
Wakhlu, A.K. Lucknow	India	Paediatric Surgery	Edinburgh
Walsh, J.A. Adelaide	Australia	Surgery	London
Yu Ho Yam, Henry Hong Kong	Hong Kong	Genito-Urinary Surgery	London

Commonwealth Academic Staff Fellows

Name & University	Country	Subject of Study	<u>Place of Study</u>
Ablorh, F.S. University of Science and Technology, Kuma	Ghana si	Agricultural Science	Oxford
Ahmad, Mesbahuddin Jahangirnagar	Bangladesh	Chemistry	Manchester
Ahmed, A.K.S. Chittagong	Bangladesh	Inorganic Chemistry	Exeter
Ahmed, S.U. Bangladesh Agricultural Universit	U U	Environmental Physiology	Glasgow

Name & University	Country	Subject of Study	Place of Study
Anisuzzaman, A.T.M. Chittagong	Bangladesh	Bengali Prose	London
Balasooriya, Indraratne Sri Lanka, Vidyalankara	Sri Lanka	Biology Teaching	Bath
Chakrabarti, Aloknath Banglalore	India	Mathematics	Dundee
Chidolue, G.C. Zambia	Zambia	Electrical Power Systems	Manchester
Choudhury, J.R. Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology	Bangladesh	Structural Analysis	Surrey
Chowdury, M.R. Jahangirnagar	Bangladesh	Number Theory	Cambridge
Dias, H.W. Sri Lanka, Peradeniya	Sri Lanka	Structural Chemistry	London
Eyeson, K.N. Cape Coast	Ghana	Reproductive Biology of Freshwater Fish	Liverpool
Goel, S.C. Poona	India	Animal Genetics	Edinburgh
Gupta, P.K. Meerut	India	Cytology	Aberystwyth
Hossain, M.A. Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology	Bangladesh	Ocean Engineering	London
Husain, Delawar Jahangirnagar	Bangladesh	Theoretical Physics	London
lnikori, J.E. Ahmadu Bello	Nigeria	Economic History	London
Kamaluddin, A.F.M. Jahangirnagar	Bangladesh	T r ansport Geography	Hull
Karunadasa, Yakupitiyage Sri Lanka, Vidyalankara	Sri Lanka	Buddhist Literature and Philosophy	London

Name & University	Country	Subject of Study	Place of Study
Khanna, M.P. Bangalore	India	Theoretical Physics	London
Latif, M.A. Bangladesh Agricultural University	Bangladesh	Poultry Nutrition	Reading
Liu Ming Chit Hong Kong	Hong Kong	Number Theory	Cambridge
Moshin, K.M. Dacca	Bangladesh	History of Bengal	London
Narayanan,M.G.M.S. Calicut	India	Ancient Indian History	London
Nath, Rameshwar Saugar	India	Thin Oxide Films	Leeds
Nwaji, M.N. Nigeria	Nigeria	Natural Products Chemistry	Nottingham
Ofomata, G.E.K. Nigeria	Nigeria	Geomorphology	Sheffield
Okafor, E.C. Nigeria	Nige r ia	Theoretical Chemistry	London
Onipinla, G.B. Lagos	Nigeria	Mechanical Engineering	London
Onuoha, G.B.I. Nigeria	Nigeria	Health Education	London
Prasad, P.C. South Pacific	Fiji	Agricultural Climatology	Reading
Purkaystha, A.R. Dacca	Bangladesh	Pharmaceutical Analysis	London
Qaisuddin, Md. Rajshahi	Bangladesh	Protein Chemistry	London
Rahman, M.H. Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology	Bangladesh	Semiconductors and Microwave Engineering	London
Rahman, M.L. Rajshahi	Bangladesh	Physical Chemistry	Swansea
Raja Rao, C. Sri Venkateswara	India	Electrical Plasma Devices	Sheffield

Name & University	Country	Subject of Study	<u>Place of Study</u>
Sethi, B.R. Delhi	India	Applied Physics	Durham
Shams-uz-Zaman, Md. Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology		Glass Technology	Sheffield
Sharma, Tikaram Banaras Hindu	India	Molecular Cytogenetics	Edinburgh
Shim Kim - Fah Nanyang	Singapore	Poultry Nutrition	London
Singh, H.B. Delhi	India	Bioinorganic Chemistry	Oxford
Silva, W.P.T. Sri Lanka, Colombo	S r i Lanka	Land Use Planning	Cambridge
Tham Seong Chee Singapore	Singapore	Malay Studies	London
Tso Shiu Kit Hong Kong	Hong Kong	Control Engineering	Sheffield
Udo, E.J. Ibadan	Nigeria	Clay Mineralogy	Reading
Ukoyen, J.P.A. Ibadan	Nigeria	French	Kent
Uwaegbute, H.O. Nigeria	Nige r ia	Animal Nutrition	Nottingham
Viswanathan, Subramanyam Sri Venkateswara	India	Shakespearian Studies	Kent
Wickremeratne, L.A. Sri Lanka, Peradeniya		Economic & Social History	London
Yung Kung-Hing Chinese University of Hong Kong	Hong Kong	Plant Biochemistry	Camb <i>r</i> idge

Name	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
CANADA		
Commonwealth Visiting Fellowships	6	
Professor J. Burke, Herald Professor of Fine Arts, University of Melbourne.	Australia	Tenable at Queen's University. To be, essentially, a scholar in residence, not giving pres- cribed courses, but parti- cipating in seminars and colloquia, and undertaking public lecturing. Also to visit other Canadian universities for lecturing purposes.
Dr. O. Edmonds, Physician-in-Charge, University Student Health Service, University of Manchester.	England	Tenabel at the University of Prince Edward Island. To investigate the nature of the University Health Services in the major Canadian Universities and their relation to other branches of medical care, particularly in the field of general practice and hospitals. His major interest is in the nature and degree of occupa- tional health and safety practised and taught in universities and in selected major industries.
Mr. F. Ezi, State Secretary, Nigeria Union of Teachers.	Nigeria	Tenable at the Provincial Association of Protestant Teachers of Quebec. To visit several teachers' organizations across Canada to investigate i) Teachers' organizations in Education, ii) Resolution of Disputes - Tactics and Strategies, iii) Methods of Salary Negotiations, iv) Curriculum Development, v) Communica- tion and Publicity, vi) Office Administration, vii) Teachers' organizations services to members, viii) Planning, ix) Meeting Procedures, and x) Teacher Education- Recruitment and Training.

69

<u>Name</u>	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
Commonwealth Visiting Fellowship	S	
Mr. Z. Futehally, Managing Director, Dynacraft Machine Company India.	India	Tenable at the University of Calgary. To give a special seminar series on environ- mental design problems in India and Southeast Asia, stressing their relevance to the Canadians and Canada. He also participated in several environmental planning and management courses. He held the Fellowship in his capacity as Vice-President of the International Union for the Conservation of Nature and Natural Resources, Switzerland.
Dr. G. Gordon, Dean, Faculty of Law, Edinburgh University.	Scotland	Tenable at the University of Toronto. To take part in the research and graduate teaching programmes of the centre of Criminology with special reference to a) Juvenile justice, b) the effects of the new Bail Reform Act, and c) the discretionary power exercised by Crown Attorneys with special reference to the procedures surrounding plea bargaining in criminal cases.
CANADA		
Commonwealth Research Fellowshi	ips	

Dr. R. Ralph Professor (Personal Chair), Department of Cell Biology, University of Auckland.	New Zealand	Tenable at the University of Alberta. To join an investi- gating team undertaking a research programme designed to i) provide a description of the detailed molecular anatomy of the Mengo virus virion, and ii) provide a thorough understanding of the molecular mechanisms involved in the biosynthesis of the viral components and their assembly into mature
		virions.

Name	Country	Purpose/Subject of Study
Commonwealth Research Fellowshi	ips	
Dr. M. Tanner, Fellow and Dean of Corpus Christi College Cambridge, and Lecturer in Moral Science.	England	Tenable at Simon Fraser University. To work on two projects: a) a book on Nietzsche, and b) to bring to conclusion a book on Aesthetics.
INDIA		
Commonwealth Visiting Fellowship	S	
Mr. K.R.M. Punchinilame, Chief Education Officer.	Sri Lanka	Tenable at various institu- tions and universities in India. To study the develo- ment in various aspects of primary, secondary, technical and vocational education, and in the universities. Also to inves- tigate the nature of the education system curriculum in the various fields, and the nature of the work, as well as the quality of the teaching and examinations.
Mr. M.N. Verma, Senior Education Officer.	Mauritius	Tenable at various institu- tions and universities in India. To study the modern developments at various levels in education; primary, secondary, college. In particular the planning, preparation and production of curricula, and the planning, preparation and production of educational texts.
NEW ZEALAND		

Commonwealth Prestige Fellowships

Professor J. Eells,	United
Professor of Mathematics,	Kingdom
University of Warwick.	0

APPENDIX V

NOTE: In all tables where they appear, figures in brackets denote the number of women included in the preceding number.

TABLE 1

Nominations invited by awarding countries

The Table shows the number (where notified) of nominations invited by the awarding countries during the reporting period. Invitations to nominate are recorded irrespective of whether subsequent competitions in the nominating countries fell outside the period

			AV	VARDI	ING CO	JUNT	RIES						<u> </u>			
	Australia 1976	Britian 1975	llong Kong 1975	Canada 1975	Cyprus 1975	Chana 1975	India 1975	Jamaica 1975	Malaysia 1975	# Malta 1975	New Zealand 1976	Nigeria 1975	Sierra Leone	*Sri Lanka *1975	Trinidad & Tobago 1975	Total
Australia Bahamas Bangladesh Barbados Belize Botswana Britain Bermuda British Solomon Is. British Virgin Is. Brunei Gibraltar Gilbert & Ellice Is. Hong Kong New Hebrides St. Helena Seychelles	10	45 2 40 4 2 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 40 40 5 2 40 40 40 5 1 2 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40	3333 3 3 3 3 3	64622422222222 2222222222 10222	4	2	2 8 1	2 2 2	2 N.S. 2 2		322222 22222 22222 22222 22222 22222 2222	3 7 2		ଡ଼ଡ଼ ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ଡ଼ ଡ଼ୄ	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	75 18 51 22 16 13 68 12 11 10 14 16 14 36 10 10
Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis Dominica St. Lucia St. Vincent Canada Cyprus Fiji Gambia Ghana Grenada Guyana India Jamaica Kenya Lesotho Malawi Malaysia Malta Mauritius Nauru	6	2 1 2 2 2 65 6 1 2 10 2 4 67 8 9 2 4 12 3 5 1		2222222 222222 222222 22222 22222 22222 2222	2 1		6 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 4	222	2 2 2		N.S. N.S. N.S. N.S. N.S. N.S. N.S. N.S.			୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼୶ଡ଼	1 1 1 1 1 1 1	$ \begin{array}{c} 10\\ 10\\ 11\\ 10\\ 25\\ 16\\ 30\\ 10\\ 25\\ 32\\ 22\\ 22\\ 22\\ 25\\ 17\\ 25\\ 10\\ 66\\ \end{array} $
New Zealand Nigeria Papua New Guinea Sierra Leone Sri Lanka Swaziland Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago Uganda Western Samoa Zambia	10	15 45 2 8 10 10 1 9 1 6 2 4	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	6 2 6 4 4 20+ 2 2 2 3 2 8 3	N . S.	2	2 2 1 3 2 1 3***	2 1 2 2	2		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2			9999999 9999999 99999999	1 1 1 1	50 66 27 26 13 42 14 28 24 12 22
TOTAL	26	442	87	246	7	8	50	19	18		80	36		288	26	1333

N.S. + # **

No specific number Includes 4 nominations invited from Zanzibar Details of a single scholarship were circulated to nominating countries These 2 nominations to come from among Uganda, Kenya and Tanzania This number also to include nominations from Barbados Sri Lanka asks for 3 Undergraduate and 3 Postgraduate nominations

72

TABLE 2

Applications received in the nominating countries for Commonwealth Scholarships

The table shows the number (where notified) of applications received during the year in the nominating countries for Commonwealth Scholarships tenable overseas.

						١V	VAR DING	AWAR DING COUNTRIES	RES				:					
	Australia 1975 2791	ailarteu A 9791	Britain 7975 	5261 Suoy Suoh	Canada 1975	761 sn ad aj	5261 ۱۳۳۹ع	S791 ≜ibnl	amaica 1975	BieyalaM 7975	116M ۲۹۲۹ ۲۹	5791 babibs5 wsN	bnslss2 wsV 9791	Vi ge ria 1975	Sierra Leone	1975 Stillanka	8 bebininT 701 ogedo 701 ogedo	Total
Australia Bahamas Bacalas	3 (2)		144 (30) 9 (5)	3 3 (2)	65 (15) 11 (8)		1(1)	-		1 (1)		7 (3)						222 (50) 26 (17)
Barbados Belíze	2 (1)		25 (5) 6 (2)		41 (10) 12 (3)								9					77 (16) 18 (5)
Botswana Britain Bermuda		42 (9)	2 (1)	7	117 (28) 3 (1)		8	10 (1)	5 (2)	e		1	34 (9)	3			-	220 (49) 7 (2)
Brittsn Solomon Is. Brittsh Virgin Is. Brunei Gibraltar	<u> </u>		2 (1)		3 (1)													5 (2) 1
Gilbert & Ellice Is. Hong Kong New Hebrides	45 (9)		z 87 (20)		63 (18)				9 (3)				28 (8)	7 (2)			7(2)	ء 246 (62)
St. Itelena Seychelles Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis Dominica			192		9999 1412								8					9899 1939
St. Lucia St. Vincent Canada Cyprus Fiji Cambia	73(15)	49(14)	331 (95) 26 (7) 26 (4)	6 8 6	(j) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č) (č			28 (7)	410	12	16(4)	8 (1)	38(12) 8 8	6 (2)			ņ	3 (1) 434(124) 217 (29) 181 (34)
Ghana Grenada Guyana India Iamaica	12 (3) 76 jt		67 (10) 2501 (207)jt	14 (3)	62 (8) 2501(207)	16(1)				12 (1)	(1)01	9 (1) 76 jt				22(1)		224 (29) 2577(207)
Kenya Lesotho Malawi	7 (5)				5 (4)							2 (1)				1(1)	1(1)	16 (12)
Malaysia Malts Mauritius Nauru	31 41 (5)		65 (9) 103 (15)	ور	Q 0 8 %			53 (4)		6		7	12				10	149 (11) 267 (29)
New Zealand Nigeria Panua Nau Cuine	11 (3)		52 (11) 167 (12)	7	158 158 6)		(1)	1	4			6 (1)					4	87 (21) 373 (20)
Sierra Leone Singapore Sri Lanka Swaziland	2 62(14)		8 (1) 12 (2) 205 (37)	2 13 (5) 138(14)	8 (1) 8 164 (28)			157(21)		101(12)		2 (2) 26 (5)		2 55 (9)	<u>.</u>			25 33 908(140) 908(140)
Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago Vganda Western Samoa Zambia	4 (1) 15 (1) 6 (1) 6 (1)		49 (13) 6 17 (2)	22 (4)	1 83 (21) 144 (11) 18 (1)	4	(1)6	1 (1)	13 (7) 13 (1)	4	9	40 (9) 1 2	œ	8		1 (1)%2	11(1)	57 (11) 155 (43) 261 (19) 28 28 28 (3)
TOTAL	501(75)	91(23)	3950(489)	225(29)	3652(401)	20(1)	18(3)	255(34)	53(13)	142(14)	32(5)	191(23)	137(29)	63(13)		7 (3)	39(4)	6876(952)
					The second second is each information is shown in the vertical column (and is included in the									-olumn (a	and to inc	i bebula	e the	

It indicates applications received in joint competitions. The total number of applications received in each joint competition is shown in the vertical column (and is included in the vertical column (and is included in the vertical column totals) of each set of avards involved, but is included once only in the horizontal line total and grand total.

TABLE 3

Nominations made to the awarding countries.

The table shows the number (where notified) of nominations submitted by the nominating countries to the awarding countries during the year. Since invitations to nominate and the submission of nominations may occur in different reporting years the nominations shown in this table have not necessarily been made in response to the invitations shown in Table 1.

Tablemase 1(1) 2 (1) 3(2) 4(2) 7(1) 2 7(1) 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <th0< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>·</th><th>P</th><th>WA</th><th>RDIN</th><th>G COU</th><th>NTR</th><th>IES</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></th0<>					·	P	WA	RDIN	G COU	NTR	IES								
Austrelia 1(1) $460(2)$ 3×2^{2} 1(1) 2(1) $460(2)$ 3×2^{2} 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 1(1) 2(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 1(1)		Australia 1975	Australia 1976	Britain 1975	Hong Kong 1975	Canada 1975	Cyprus 1974	Ghana 1975	India 1975		Malaysia 1975	Malta 1975	New Zealand 1975	New Zealand 1976	Nigeria 1975	Sierra Leone	Lanka	Trinidad & Tobago 1975	Total
Sr, Helena 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Australia Bahamas Bangladesh Barbados Belize Botswana Britain Berimuda British Solomon Islands British Virgin Islands Brunei Gibraltar Gibert & Ellice Islands Hong Kong	1(1) 4(1) 1 1		46(14) 2 (1) 90 (7) 4 (1) 4 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1) 1	3 3(2)	12(2) 4(2) 7(1) 4(2) 1 2 22(9) 2(1) 1)	1(1)	2(1)		1(1)	2 2	3(1) 2 1 1				1		$\begin{array}{c} 70 & (20) \\ 10 & (6) \\ 107 & (9) \\ 11 & (2) \\ 4 & (1) \\ 7 & (2) \\ 48 & (1) \\ 5 & (2) \\ 2 \\ 2 & (1) \\ 1 \\ 2 \end{array}$
	St. Helena Seychelles Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis Dominica St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Vincent Canada Cyprus Fiji Gambia Ghana Grenada Grenada Guyana India Jamaica Kenya Lesotho Malawi Malaysia Malawi Malaysia Malta Mauritius Nauru New Zealand Nigeria Papua New Guinea Rhodesia Sierra Leone Singapore Sri Lanka Swaziland Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago	7 4 16 2(2) 3 2 4 1 6(2) 4 3 3 3 3 1 2	7(2)	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2(1)\\ 1\\ 83(29)\\ 7(1)\\ 3\\ 5\\ 21(2)\\ 5\\ 81(10)\\ 8(3)\\ 11\\ 13(1)\\ 21(2)\\ 5\\ 11(1)\\ 16(2)\\ 73(5)\\ 6\\ 23(4)\\ 8(1)\\ 11(4)\\ 27(3)\\ 2(1)\\ 19\end{array}$	3 2 3 1 2 2(1) 3	$ \begin{array}{c} 1(1) \\ 1 \\ 2(1) \\ 1(1) \\ 6 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 6(1) \\ 2(2) \\ 6(1) \\ 2(2) \\ 1(1) \\ 9(2) \\ 1(1) \\ 5 \\ 11 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 10(2) \\ 4 \\ 4 \\ 2 \\ 9 \\ 16 \\ 4(2) \\ \end{array} $	2	2	2 2 5 1 9(3) 7(1) 4* 1 4(1) 2	1		1	4(1) 1 3 3 4 2 1 1 1 2 2(2) 1 2 3 1	6(3)	2 2 1 1 1 2		1 1 4 2 1 1 1 5	1 1 2 1 1(1) 2 1 1 1 1 1	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$

* This figure includes applicants from Western Samoa

TABLE 4

Commonwealth Scholarships taken up in the awarding countries

The Table shows the number (where notified) of Commonwealth Scholars who took up awards in the awarding countries during the year under report. The names of these Scholars are listed alphabetically under the country in which they took up their awards in Appendix III.

					AW	ARDI	NG COL	NTRI	ES							
	Australia	Britain	llong Kong	Canada	Cyprus	Chana	India	Jamaica	Malaysia	Malta	New Zealand	Nigeria	Sicrra Leone	Sri Lanka	Trinidad & Tobago	TOTAL
Australia Bahamas Bangladesh Bargladesh Bartbados Belize Botswana Britain Bermuda British Solomon Is. British Virgin Is. Brunei Gibraltar Gibraltar Gibrat & Ellice Is. Hong Kong New Hebrides St. Helena Seychelles Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis Dominica St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Lucia St. Vincent Canada Cyprus Fiji Gambia Ghana Grenada Guyana India Jamaica Kenya Lesotho Malawi Malaysia Malta Mauritius Nauru New Zealand Nigeria Papua New Guinea Rhodesia Sierra Leone Singapore Sri Lanka Swaziland Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago Uganda Western Samoa Zambia	$\begin{array}{c} 2(1) \\ 1 \\ 4(1) \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 2(1) \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 24 (5) \\ 1 \\ 35 (5) \\ 3 (1) \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 9 (2) \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 9 (2) \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 9 (2) \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 9 (2) \\ 2 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$	1	9(1) 1 1 $14(5)$ 1 1 3 $1(1)$ $3(1)$ 1 $1(1)$ $3(2)$ $2(1)$ 1 1 $1(1)$ $2(1)$ 1 4 4 4 4 4 1 3 4			1(1) 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 6(2) 2 2(1) 2				2 2 2 2(1) 1(1) 1 1 1	1(1) 1(1) 1(1) 2(2) 2 1 1 2(2)				$\begin{array}{c} F\\ 32 (7)\\ 2\\ 2\\ 1 (6)\\ 2 (1)\\ 3\\ 1\\ 23 (7)\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 1\\ 23 (7)\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 13 (2)\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 13 (2)\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 13 (2)\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 1\\ 2\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 2\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\ 1\\$
	38(८)	292(53)	3	88(15)			24(2)				10(2)	11(6)				266(82)

:	Australia	Britain	Hong Kong	Canada	Cyprus	Ghana	India	Jamaica	Malaysia	Majta	New Zealand	Nigeria	Sterra Leone		Trinidad and Tobago	TOTAL
1970/71	32(5)	242(26)	1	76(5)			20(2)		2		7(3)	3(1)		2	1	386 (42)
1971/72	23(5)	229(39)	4	111(20)			19(3)	1(1)	2		6(1)	5(4)				400 (73)
1972/73	45(8)	230(34)	3	70(11)			20(5)	1	1		10(1)	4(1)		5(2)		389 (62)
1973/74	29(4)	238(39)	2(1)	108(18)		6(2)	35(5)	1	2		9(3)	6(2)		5	1	442 (74)
1974/75	38(4)	292(53)	3	88(15)			24(4)				10(2)	11(6)				466 (84)
			I		ļ											
TOTAL	167(26	1,231(191)	13(1	453(69)		6(2)	118(19)	3(1)	7		42(10)	29(14	}	12(2)	2	2,083 (335)

TABLE 5 Commonwealth Scholarships taken up in the awarding countries during the five years indicated *

*The information given here is taken from Table 4 of the report for the respective years

.

	aifarter A	n i tai n	διολ βιομ	вралаС	Cyprus	Ghana	aibnI)ब्रल्लहाटब	sievslaM	Malta	bnslas2 wsM	Nigeria	Sierra Leone	Sri Lanka	Trinidad & Tobago	1ATOT
A ustralia 13 aham a s 18 angladesh 18 arbados	e	56(8) 2 5(1) 5(1)		19(2) 3 16(3) 1			2(2)				4					81(12) 5 89(10) 6(1)
Belize Botswana		77		1												с-
Britain Bermuda	14(4)	·	2(1)	32(10)			8(1)				5(1)	6(4)		2(1)		69(22) 1
British Solomon Is. British Virgin Is. Brunoi				1												
Gilbort & Elliss 15		-		1			······									2
llong Kong New Hebrides	1 1(1)	18(4)		10(3)				· · · · · · ·		-						30(7) 1(1)
St. Ilclena Seychelles				1												-
Antigua Montserrat				<u>3</u> 3												<u>9</u> 9
5t. Kitts Nevis Domínica		1 2(1)		01 01												30
St. Vincent		3(1)		2(I)												5(1) 7(1)
Canada Cyprus	9(1)	64(18) 7					4(2) 1				4(2) 1	e				84(23) 10
Fiji Gambia	13(1)	(1) 7					*9(1)				e					30(3)
Ghana Grenada	4	<u>ق</u> ر-		<u>;</u> ;;;			3					1(1)				36(2)
Guyana India	y	ę(1)		2			7							ç		10(1)
amaica Kenva	>			(G)			Y				(i)	2(2) 2		, ,	-	16(9)
Lesotho		~ · ·		Ĵ.			> -				4	4		4	4	1
Malaysia Mate	<i></i>	21(0) 51(0)		<u>ہ</u> تا ہ			9(2)									47(8)
Mauritius Nauri	-4	8(2)		3(1)			14									29(3)
New Zealand Nigeria	<u>3</u> (1)	23(8)		11			**2				-				-	(0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
'akistan 'apua New Guinea)	<u>.</u>		200			,								•	<u>(</u>]]
Rhodesia Sierra Leone	1 <u>(</u>)	28(2) 9(1)					1					2(1)				29(3) 16(2)
Singapore Sri Lanka	- (c)r	8(1)	- 15	<u>8</u> 2			12(3)				1					17(2) 50(10)
Swaziland Tanzania	Ì	7)				2					-				- 5
Tonga Trinidad & Tohana	Ξű	1		1-10								, ,				8(1) 8(1)
Uganda Vestern Samoo	чn	1	1	6			ŧ					(7)7				14
ambia	2	2(1)	<u></u>	7	*****											14(1)
TOTAL.	00(12)	596(90)	6(1)	281(63)			80(11)			-	52(4)	19(10)		6(1)	2	1114(172)

Commonwealth Scholarships held in the awarding countries: the count was taken in the first term of the academic year beginning in the year under report.

TABLE 6

TABLE 7(a)

Analysis by age and sex of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table $\boldsymbol{6}$ according to awarding country

Awarding Country	Under 26	26 - 28	Over 28	Male	Female	Total
Australia	43	27	29	87	12	99
Britain	198	161	237	506	90	596
Hong Kong	1	3	2	5	1	6
Canada	58	96	127	238	43	281
Cyprus						
Ghana						
India	40	3	37	69	11	80
Jamaica						
Malaysia						
Malta		1		1		1
New Zealand	11	6	7	20	4	24
Nigeria	6	12	1	9	10	19
Sierra Leone						
Sri Lanka	2	2	2	5	1	6
Trinidad & Tobago			2	2		2
Total	359	311	444	942	172	1114

Nominating Country	Under 26	26 - 28	Over 28	Male	Female	Total
Australia	49	25	7	69 5 79 5 3 1 47	12	81
Bahamas	1		4 25 5 2 1 7	5		5 89 6 3
Bangladesh	27	37	25	79	10	89
Barbados		1	5	5	1	6
Belize	}	1	2	3		3
Botswana			1	1		1 1
Britain	43	19	7	47	22	69
Bermuda	1			1		1
British Solomon Is.						
British Virgin Is.		1		1		1
Brunei			0			
Gibraltar			2	2		2
Gilbert & Ellice Is.		1/	7	22	7	20
Hong Kong	9	14	7	23	7	30
New Hebrides	1	1			1	1
St. Helena	1			,		
Seychelles	1			1	1	1
Antigua			1		1	1
Montserrat			1	, ,	1	1 2 3 2 4
St. Kitts Nevis Dominica	1		$\frac{1}{2}$	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 1	
St. Lucia	1	1	1		1	3
St. Vincent	2	T	2	1 2	1	
Canada	50	22	2 3	3 61	23	84
Cyprus	59 7	2	1	10	20	10
Fiji	19	2	Q	27	3	30
Gambia	1	1	9 3	27 5 34 1 9 143 7 26	5	50
Ghana	3	9	24	34	2	5 36
Grenada	3 1	,	1	1	$\overline{1}$	2
Guyana	1	2	7	â	ī	10
India	7	37	114	143	15	158
Jamaica	i á	4	11-8	7	Ĩ	16
Kenya	1 7 4 4 1 6	11	12	26	ĩ	27
Lesotho			_	1	_	1
Malawi	6	5 13	3	13	1	14
Malaysia	10	13	24	39	1 8	47
Malta	3	5	2	10		10
Mauritius	14	-	15	26	3	29
Nauru						
New Zealand	27	7	9 56 3 1 6	34	9	43
Nigeria	10	30	56	34 86 3 4 26 14	10	43 96 4 5 29 16 17
Pakistan		1	3	3	1	4
Papua New Guinea	3 12 3 5 9	1	1	4	1	5
Rhodesia	12	11	6	26	3 2 2	29
Sierra Leone	3	7 2	6	14	2	16
Singapore	5	2	10	15	2	17
Sri Lanka	9	19	22	40	10	50
Swaziland				1		1
Tanzania	3 3 7 2	1 2 4 5 4	8	13	_	13
Tonga	3	4	1	7	1 6	8
Trinidad & Tobago		5	9 8	15	0	21
Uganda	2	4		14		14
Western Samoa			1		•	
Zambia		4	10	13	1	14
Total	359	311	444	942	172	1,114

TABLE 7 (b) Analysis by age and sex of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table 6 according to nominating country

TABLE 8(a)

Analysis by course of study of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table 6 according to awarding country

Awarding Country	First Degree or Diploma	Second First Degree or Postgraduate Dinloma	Higher Degree	Research	Other University Courses	Non . University Courses	TOTAL
Australia	26	3	69			1	99
Britain	18	66	478	24	9	1	596
Hong Kong			5	1			6
Canada	14		266	1			281
Cyprus							
Ghana							
India							
Jamaica							
Malaysia							
Malta			1				1
New Zealand			24				24
Nigeria			19		1]	19
Sierra Leone							
Sri Lanka			6				6
Trinidad & Tobago			2				2
TOTAL	58	69	870	26	9	2	1034

Note: the number of scholars analysed in tables 8 and 9 is 80 less than the grand total of table 6, as the relevant data for scholars in India was not available.

TABLE S (b) Analysis by course of study of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table 6 according to nominating country

			,	····	+	ı ··	
NOMINATING COUNTRY	First Degree or Diploma	Second First Degree or Postgraduate Diploma	Higher Degree	Research	Other University Courses	Non-University Courses	TOTAL
Australia Bahamas Bangladesh Barbados Belize Botswana Britain Bermuda British Solomon Is. British Virgin Is. Brunei	1	1 1 4 5 1	78 3 83 1 2 1 59 1	2	2		79 5 89 6 3 1 61 1 1
Gibraltar Gilbert & Ellice Is. Hong Kong New Hebrides St. Helena Seychelles Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis	1 1 1 1	4	1 26 1				2 30 1 1 1 2
Dominica St. Lucia St. Vincent Canada Cvprus Fiji Gambia Ghana Grenada	1 7 12	1 2 5 2 1 2	1 1 2 74 2 6 3 32 1 7 128		1	1	3 2 4 50 9 21 5 34
Guyana India Jamaica Kenya Lesotho Malawi Malaysia Malta Mauritius	1 1 1 13	1 3 2 2 3 3 1	7 128 14 19 9 35 8 1	23	۵		$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\ 2\\ 3\\ 4\\ 50\\ 9\\ 21\\ 5\\ 34\\ 2\\ 8\\ 158\\ 16\\ 21\\ 1\\ 13\\ 38\\ 10\\ 15\\ \end{array} $
Nauru New Zealand Nigeria Pakistan Papua New Guinea Rhodesia Sierra Leone Singapore Sri Lanka Swaziland	1 3	13 1 1 5	41 81 5 26 11 12 38 1		1		21 95 29 15 17 38 1 11 8 17
Swaziland Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago Uganda Western Samoa Zambia	1 6 2 1	1 2 1	10 1 13 13 13				$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 11 \\ 8 \\ 17 \\ 12 \\ 1 \\ 12 \end{array} $
Total	58	69	870	26	9	2	1,034

TABLE 9(a)

Awarding Country	Arts	Social Studies	Pure Science	Technology	Medicine	Dentistry	Agriculture & Forestry	Veterinary Science	TOTAL
Australia	9	8	25	31	7	1	9	9	99
B r itain	108	93	163	122	74	3	26	7	596
Hong Kong	2		2	2					6
Canada	47	65	43	81	12		23	10	281
Cyprus									
Ghana									
India									
Jamaica									
Malaysia									
Malta					1				1
New Zealand	2	4	9	4	1		4		24
Nigeria	11	4	2				2		19
Sierra Leone									
Sri Lanka	2		2				2		6
Trinidad & Tobago							2		2
TOTAL	181	174	246	240	95	4	68	26	1034

Analysis by subject of study of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table 6 according to awarding country

NOM IN AT IN G COUNT RY	Arts	Social Studies	Pure Science	Technology	Medicine	Dentistry	Agriculture and Forestry	Vetertnary Science	TOTAL
Australia Bahamas Bangladesh Barbados	15 3 2	26 3 17 1	24 1 26	11 1 23	1 8 3		2 8	4	79 5 89 6 3
Belize Botswana Britain	3 18	13	1 18 1	6	2		3	1	61
Bermuda British Solomon Is. British Virgin Is. Brunei		1							1
Gibraltar Gilbert & Ellice Is. Hong Kong New Hebrides	1 5	7 1	1	6	8				2 30 1
St. Helena Seychelles Antigua Montserrat St. Kitts Nevis Dominica St. Lucia St. Vincent	1 1 1 2	1 1 1 1		1 1 1 1			1		1 1 2 3 2 4 80
Canada Coprus Fiji Gambia Ghana Grenada	31 3 3 2	17 1 3 3	19 1 3 8 2 1	11 7 8 10	1 2 4 1 8		1	3	4 80 9 21 5 34 2 8 158 16
Guvana India Jamaica Kenya Lesotho	3 13	1 14 1 5	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\ 33\\ 1\\ 3\end{array} $	2 1,9 2 5	1 12 3 1		14 2 3	3 1	21
Malawi Malaysia Malta Mauritius	1 6 1 2	1 11 1	6 12 2 2	69 2 5 1 2 4 6 8	2 1 2	1	3 2		1 13 38 10 15
Nauru New Zealand Nigeria Pakistan Papua New Guinea	13 7 1 2	2 7 2	16 22 1 1	5 25	1 19 1	1	2 10 1	2 4	41 95 4 5 29
Rhodesia Sierra Leone Singapore Sri Lanka	12 5 3 3	3	10 5 11	1 1 3 11	4 2	1	3 3	1 5	15 17 38
Swaziland Tanzania Tonga Trinidad & Tobago Uganda Western Samoa	1 4	3 6 3 1 7 2 2 2	2 5 4	2 3	3 2 1 1	1	2 2 3	1	1 11 8 17 14
Zambia	3	4		3	1		3		14
TOTAL	181	174	246	240	95	4	68	26	1,034

TABLE %b) Analysis by subject of study of the Commonwealth Scholars shown in Table 6 according to nominating country

© Copyright 1975 Published by the COMMONWEALTH SECRETARIAT

ISBN 0 85092 103 1

May be purchased from the Commonwealth Secretariat Publications Section Marlborough House London SW1Y 5HX

